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In this Annual Report, Racional Engenharia presents to its clients, employees, 
suppliers and other stakeholders key information about its business perfor-
mance during 2014, as well as the Management’s expectations for the future. 
More than a rendering of accounts, this report seeks to describe how Racional 
Engenharia’s business is conducted and what strategies are used to create val-
ue in the economic, social and environmental realms in the long run.

In line with Racional Engenharia’s commitment to always improve its Corpo-
rate Governance practices this material was prepared to ensure transparency of 
the Company’s management, its goals and results by reporting the main events 
of the year.

The information presented here was collected through interviews with key 
executives of the Company. The content also includes disclosures made by Ra-
cional Engenharia throughout the year. Furthermore, the financial statements in 
this report are audited by KPMG.

With regard to the reporting framework, Racional Engenharia follows rec-
ommendations set forth by the Brazilian Association of Listed Companies 
(Abrasca), which awards the best annual reports issued by publicly and private-
ly held companies, as well as reports prepared by civil society organizations.

This Annual Report and its previous editions are available online from Ra-
cional Engenharia’s website (www.racional.com). For queries, suggestions and 
comments, please contact us on www.racional.com (Talk to Us). 

Happy reading!

about  
tHis rEport



MEssaGE  
froM tHE cEo  
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Following a steady expansion cycle in the Brazilian civil construction industry 
between 2005 and 2013 — when Racional Engenharia grew by 30% a year well 
above the industry average — we are now faced with a period of adjustment. The 
year 2014 confronted us with a new reality.

Our equivalent revenues during the period were influenced by a downturn in 
the macroeconomic scenario and reached BRL 850 million, half of the BRL 2.018 
billion recorded in the previous year. In numerical terms, this performance seems 
to be unsatisfactory, but even in this adverse scenario we maintained high liquid-
ity and low debt. Our expenditures also followed the forecast previously estab-
lished in our business plan.

Therefore, the fall in revenues led to a reduction in the number of contracts. 
However, during most of the year we continually improved the recovery of our 
portfolio through new construction projects, but not in time to impact the results. 
In this context, some projects were rescheduled and part of the 2014 revenues 
were shifted to 2015.

In periods of rapid growth, as we have recently experienced, it is common 
for companies to grow in a non-uniform manner. As the growth trend reversed, 
we realized that it was the right moment to create a new cycle of productivity 
gains. The scale of the Company’s profitability and profit margin led to a neces-
sary adjustment phase for our business strategy and people. Despite downsiz-
ing our workforce to meet the needs of our portfolio, we nevertheless main-
tained technical and operational training for our staff. 

In 2014 we took time to reflect on our strengths and weaknesses with the 
aim of enhancing our competitiveness and making improvements.

Therefore, we set as a short-term goal to review our business model. We 
started working on this agenda in 2014 and it involved almost all our leaders. 
During this time of reflection, we discussed our main business attributes and 
positioning with our Advisory Council. We now have a roadmap for the next four 
years and our agenda has a specific set of goals.

In the medium term we wish to foster broader productivity gains and gover-
nance in project management. Our aim is to reach a balance of effort and focus 
from all areas that are critical to our success. In the long term our goal is to be 
the most reliable Company in the Brazilian construction sector and an industry 
benchmark for management, talent, relationships and productivity. 

To achieve all these goals we rely on our strengths, namely, the commitment 
of our employees towards the Company and the Company’s commitment to-
wards its employees, clients, suppliers and partners. Another strength is the way 
in which we deploy our broad range of engineering and construction skills in an 
integrated manner.

These features combined with a strong focus on the people who make up 
our Company allowed us to be recognized as the best in Brazil’s Construction 
and Engineering industry in 2013. This outstanding achievement, which was 
announced during the 14th edition of the Valor 1000 Award, sponsored by Valor 
Econômico financial newspaper, was an important milestone for us since in that 
year when market demand was up and economic conditions were favorable, 
Racional Engenharia was recognized as a top industry performer.

In 2014, we also worked on the implementation of our Code of Conduct. The 
Code will come into effect in 2015 and is tailored to the Company’s cultural traits. 
When completed, the Code will allow all Racional Engenharia employees to have 
full access to information regarding the Company’s Values   and ethical principles.

We, therefore, faced the challenges of 2014 in a creative way. For 2015 we 
do not anticipate a strong market recovery, although the macroeconomic sce-
nario is starting to demonstrate signs of rationality. Thus, investors who think in 
the long run might wish to consider a move. But whatever the future scenario 
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may be, Racional Engenharia’s existing portfolio will ensure consistent perfor-
mance for the Company for the next year. 

With a number of contracts in the process of being signed, for 2015 we 
project revenues 16% higher than in 2014 totaling approximately BRL 1 billion. 
This growth, however, may not be a sign of market recovery but rather the rec-
ognition of our capabilities by our clients. For the implementation of new con-
struction projects, we have expanded our activities in project management and 
adapted them to our clients’ strategies. These changes will not have an impact 
on profit margins, but rather on value delivery.

These future results and those achieved through the review of our strate-
gies are and will only be possible thanks to the support and confidence of our 
employees, clients, suppliers and other stakeholders. To all of them, our deepest 
thanks and our commitment to follow the path that will lead us to be a bench-
mark company in the Brazilian construction sector, while creating value through 
reliability, transparency, competitiveness and efficiency.

NewtoN SimõeS
cEo

“in pEriods of rapid GrowtH,  
as wE HavE rEcEntly ExpEriEncEd, 
it is coMMon for coMpaniEs to 
Grow in a non-uniforM MannEr. 
as tHE GrowtH trEnd rEvErsEd, 
wE rEalizEd tHat it was tHE riGHt 
MoMEnt to crEatE a nEw cyclE  
of productivity Gains.”
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Racional Engenharia is a leading company in the Brazilian private construction 
and engineering sector. Currently, it serves eight market segments:

1 2 3

4 5

6 7 8

1  mission CritiCal faCilities (Data Centers anD Data proCessing)
2  Corporate BuilDings
3  shopping malls 
4  inDustrial plants
5  hospitals
6  hotels anD Convention Centers
7  logistiCs parks
8  eDuCational anD Cultural Centers

Racional Engenharia’s business is conducted through an integrated vision of 
Engineering and Construction and relies on the interdependence between three 
cycles: pre-construction, construction and operation. This dynamics varies ac-
cording to the particular characteristics of each construction project. Racional 
Engenharia offers professional and customized solutions tailored to the needs 
of its clients. These solutions can be hired according to the Company’s involve-
ment in the design development and construction. 

With a 43-year long history, Racional Engenharia has a broad portfolio of 
construction projects and has delivered more than 560 construction projects 
across Brazil totaling 8 million square meters of built area.

Headquartered in the city of São Paulo and established as a limited liability 
company, Racional Engenharia is controlled by its holding company — Racional 
Participações — which includes Racional Empreendimentos, geared to invest-
ments in real estate portfolio, and Racional Desenvolvimento & Gestão Imo-
biliária, which provides real estate asset management and development services.
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ConstruCtion portfolio
Racional Engenharia’s construction portfolio is dependent on cyclical conditions 
and varies according to the performance of the market segments that compose it. 
In 2014, the shopping malls segment, which has maintained a significant position 
in the portfolio in recent years, accounted for most of the Company’s construction 
projects in terms of equivalent income, reaching 67%. In number of projects un-
derway and completed, the Mission Critical Facilities segment stood out, account-
ing for 36% from the total.

Throughout 2014, Racional Engenharia’s portfolio comprised 14 construction 
projects across Brazil:

portfolio BreakDown By segment — numBer of projeCts
Mission critical facilitiEs (data cEntErs and data procEssinG) – 36% 

corporatE buildinGs – 21,5% 

sHoppinG Malls – 21,5% 

industrial plants – 7% 

HotEls and convEntion cEntErs – 7% 

loGistics parKs – 7% 

portfolio BreakDown By segment — equivalent revenue

segment projeCts unDerway
Mission critical facilitiEs syncHrotron liGHt laboratory (projEct sirius) – são paulo statE

corporatE buildinGs localiza HEadquartErs – Minas GErais statE

 pátio MarítiMa – rio dE janEiro statE

 b32 coMMErcial buildinG – são paulo statE

sHoppinG Malls nova iGuaçu sHoppinG Mall – rio dE janEiro statE

 parK sul sHoppinG Mall – rio dE janEiro statE

industrial plants jaGuar land rovEr plant – rio dE janEiro statE

 projeCts CompleteD in 2014
Mission critical facilitiEs itaú tEcHnoloGy cEntEr – são paulo statE 

 bM&fbovEspa data cEntEr – são paulo statE

 GE rEsEarcH and tEcHnoloGy cEntEr – rio dE janEiro statE

 l’ÓrEal rEsEarcH and innovation cEntEr (1st pHasE) – rio dE janEiro statE

sHoppinG Malls barra sHoppinG Mall – rio dE janEiro statE

HotEls and convEntion cEntErs barra Hilton HotEl – rio dE janEiro statE

loGistics parKs cEntEranEl viracopos – são paulo statE

corporatE buildinGs – 2,5% 

Mission critical facilitiEs – 15,3% 

HotEls and convEntion cEntErs – 8% 

industrial plants – 0,2% 

loGistics parKs – 6,7% 

sHoppinG Malls – 67,3% 



13  ■  coMpany profilE 

Racional Engenharia has achieved a growing presence in the Mission Critical Fa-
cilities segment, which accounted for most of the Company’s projects in numeri-
cal terms in 2014. During the year, four large Mission Critical Facilities were com-
pleted — two in the state of São Paulo (Itaú Technology Center and BM&FBovespa 
Data Center) and two in Rio de Janeiro (GE Research and Technology Center and 
the first phase of the L’Óreal Research and Innovation Center). Furthermore, the 
Company’s portfolio was increased further with the Synchrotron Light Laboratory 
(Project Sirius) to be built in the city of Campinas, São Paulo State. Project Sirius 
is a 4th generation particle accelerator used in the analysis of various organic 
and inorganic materials. It is considered one of the largest and most complex 
scientific infrastructure projects in Brazil and one of the most sophisticated high-
tech facilities ever to be built in the country as it will require groundbreaking 
mechanical and thermal stability. When ready, it will be the largest laboratory of 
its kind in the Southern Hemisphere and one of the world’s largest for use by 
researchers from diverse fields of knowledge. It will also allow the advancement 
of strategic areas for Brazil, such as agriculture, health and energy. 

Itaú Technology Center, located  
in the town of Mogi Mirim, São Paulo 
State, houses the largest data center 
in Latin America (76,235m² total  
built area including an 11,934m²  
data hall). For this project, Racional 
Engenharia acted as a Construction 
Manager at Risk, a type of contract 
that allows contractors to work 
collaboratively with their clients, 
architecture and engineering offices 
and mission critical equipment 
suppliers from the pre-construction 
stage. Under this contract format, 
Racional Engenharia can transfer  
to the project its data center 
construction knowledge and expertise. 



2businEss 
ManaGEMEnt 
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Racional Engenharia wants to be a benchmark company within its chosen sec-
tors. In this sense, in 2014 it began the review of its management model with a 
special focus on aspects such as productivity and quality. The Company’s goal 
is to improve processes to ensure delivery of the best engineering and con-
struction solutions for its clients. 

our funDamentals
Racional Engenharia expresses its Values, its culture and unique way of being 
through its Fundamentals:

inspiration
ultiMatEly, wE arE all “worKErs in construction”. 

This inspirational statement expresses Racional Engenharia’s understanding that 
the way it thinks and relates with its stakeholders helps it to evolve and trans-
form. As it acknowledges the fact that everyone in the Company is a ‘worker in 
construction’ it demonstrates its willingness to learn and grow.

values

trust

We promote experiences that reflect the integrity and skills of our people and the 
organization. This is the beginning and the end of everything we do.

aEstHEtics

We express our Values through our attitude and the organization of our workplace 
environment. We ensure that form reflects our content.

“solutionMEnt”1

We anticipate the need and seek the solution. Our attitude is the result of solu-
tion combined with movement.

coMMitMEnt

We are interested both in the process and the result of a project. We are bound 
by the attitude of continually seeking the success of our projects. 

mission
To develop engineering solutions and build buildings in an innovative and compet-
itive way, thus contributing to a better society.

vision
To be the most reliable brand in our market.

1  “Solutionment” = solution + movement. The combination of these two words conveys something 
very strong in Racional Engenharia’s culture: the attitude of anticipating the need and actively seek-
ing the solution, thus unleashing innovative attitudes.
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ContraCt leaDership
At Racional Engenharia, contract leadership is conducted through an integrated 
view of Engineering and Construction. In this respect, the Company believes 
that the delivery of a building results from three interdependent stages: pre-con-
struction, construction and operation.

In the pre-construction stage, emphasis is placed on recognition of building 
performance requirements and on managing engineering designs, quality man-
agement plan, pricing and deadlines, logistics and construction methods, as well 
as value engineering, sustainability and certifications. Through this, Racional 
Engenharia seeks to provide clients with greater assurance in decision making 
taking into account risks and opportunities. In the construction stage, Racional 
Engenharia is responsible for the overall execution of the project and assumes 
management of timeframe, cost and quality. This stage starts from pre-con-
struction, with or without the management of design documents provided by the 
client. The full cycle is completed when the operation stage begins and the 
performance indicators established for the project are produced. 

Each of these stages takes on its own characteristics according to the proj-
ect. To fit into this framework, Racional Engenharia’s services contracts can be 
divided into three different categories, which vary according to the Company’s 
involvement and participation in the design development and construction work:

GEnEral contractor (Gc): Under this contract, Racional Engenharia performs 
construction work from the design documents developed and provided by the 
client and is in charge of the construction stage.

construction ManaGEr at risK (cM@risK): Under this contract, Racional Engen-
haria works in collaboration with the client and architecture and engineering 
professionals as from the pre-construction stage so as to incorporate its know-
how into the engineering designs. Furthermore, this type of contract allows for 
fast-track construction. 

dEsiGn & buildEr (db): Under this contract, Racional Engenharia undertakes 
pre-construction services and is responsible for the preparation of designs and 
for construction services. This includes managing all contracts with the supply 
chain involved in the work, as well as meeting operation requirements and cost, 
time and quality targets.

Each contract is led by a Racional Engenharia officer with decision-making au-
tonomy. This leader follows the governance and management standards applied 
to all the Company contracts. 

projeCt management moDel
To ensure the governance and quality of its management model, Racional En-
genharia created the Racional Program for quality and performance (PRqd), its 
main management tool. Through it the Company can use its own management 
model adapted to the reality of its operations and business culture. Therefore, 
performance targets and processes can be organized from the practices and 
routines required by each project.

The PRqd adopts best project management practices established by the PMI — 
Project Management Institute and is based on the PMBOK (Project Management 
Book of Knowledge) method.
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intangiBle assets
Given the nature of Racional Engenharia’s activity, Brand, Knowledge and Human 
Capital are its key intangible assets. Even though fundamental, they cannot be mea-
sured nor explicitly included in the financial statements. They differ from tangible 
assets, which can be measured in the past and in the present by means of eco-
nomic and financial indicators that serve as the yardstick for management analysis 
and the financial health of the Company, as well as its productivity and profitability.

In Racional Engenharia’s opinion, management of a company’s intangible 
assets is one of the pivotal value-creating elements of today’s business world. In 
recognizing that these assets are an integral part of its capital and an important 
strategic asset, Racional Engenharia seeks to provide the conditions for their 
development and protection. 

knowleDge management
Knowledge acquired by employees through their expertise and experience in 
projects undertaken by Racional Engenharia is interpreted as a value generat-
ing asset for all. This is a process that aims to ensure the development of a 
learning environment conducive to innovation.

To foster knowledge Racional Engenharia uses Racional.net internal em-
ployee website, which contains data sharing tools. One such tool is the Knowl-
edge Database comprising everything learned from construction projects and 
the expertise acquired over more than four decades of operation. 

BranD
In its 43-year long history, Racional Engenharia became an established, trusted 
and recognized brand. This is thanks to many different variables ranging from 
the attitude of the Company and its employees to how it conducts its business 
to the way it relates with its stakeholders.

One of the factors that contributes to the creation of its Brand value are the 
awards won by the Company and granted by organizations, media vehicles and 
renowned companies who have recognized Racional Engenharia’s competence 
and good performance. Furthermore, the relationship that the Company main-
tains with civil society through partnerships with NGOs has also enhanced the 
value of its Brand. 

innovation is proposEd as  
a MEans to providE sMartEr 
solutions, wHilE adaptinG 
tHE latEst tEcHnoloGiEs 
to tHE rEality and nEEds 
of cliEnts. racional 
EnGEnHaria's buildinGs 
Enjoy statE-of-tHE-art 
construction tEcHnoloGy  
to EnsurE quality and  
HiGH pErforMancE.
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3rd sEconci-sp worKplacE HEaltH and safEty award 2014. Racional Enge-
nharia was awarded the Gold rating in the Worksite Healthcare Facility category 
(Commercial Building B32). See page 36.

1st sEconci-sp EnvironMEntal award 2014. Racional Engenharia was awarded 
the Gold rating in the Environmental Management of the Construction Site Sur-
rounding Area (Itaú Technology Center). See page 21.

bEst construction and EnGinEErinG coMpany in brazil — valor 1000 award. 
Racional Engenharia was recognized as the best Construction and Engineering 
company in Brazil in 2013 at the 14th edition of the Valor 1000 Award, sponsored 
by Valor Econômico newspaper. To select the best among each of the 26 seg-
ments analyzed, eight financial indicators were taken into account: net earnings, 
Ebitda margin, sustainable growth, net worth profitability, activity margin, current 
liquidity, turnover asset, and interest coverage.

valor 1000 nEwspapEr. In the ranking by industry sector conducted by the news-
paper Racional Engenharia was second in profitability and third in asset turnover. 
Published by Valor Econômico newspaper for 12 years, this study compiles the top 
thousand Brazilian companies of the year. The award is presented to those compa-
nies who achieved best performance on indicators such as financial stability, prof-
itability, growth, risk and value created from business management.

GrEEn buildinG council brasil (Gbc brasil) seeks to foster sustainable con-
struction in Brazil. Racional Engenharia also participates in the work group respon-
sible for adapting the LEED (Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design) 
certification to Brazilian standards. The LEED certification is a seal of approval 
attesting to a building’s compliance with sustainability standards. 

são paulo EnvironMEntal coMMittEE (coMasp / sinduscon -sp) . The purpose 
of this committee is to disseminate information and train civil construction em-
ployees on how to make the industry more sustainable through good environ-
ment-related practices on relevant topics such as Legal Timber, Waste Manage-
ment and Carbon Emissions.

instituto EtHos is an association whose purpose is to disseminate corporate 
social responsibility practices. Racional Engenharia is a member of the Instituto 
Ethos since 2012 and has contributed to the development of social technolo-
gies in an ongoing improvement process in corporate social responsibility. An 
example of this is the Company’s partnership with UniEthos in 2013 for the de-
velopment of actions for its supply chain. 

institutE for tHE proMotion of EntErprisinG worK (trabalHo E vida) offers 
technical programs, lectures and seminars on Workplace Safety, Health and 
Quality of Life, besides disseminating new training technologies. Racional Engen-
haria is often invited to talk at the events organized by the Institute and to share 
its experience in Safety, Environment and Health, which are critical topics for the 
civil construction sector. The target audience for these events are labor profes-
sionals, officials from the Public Ministry of Labor and the Federal Ministry of 
Labor, trade unions, and various companies. 

awarDs

assoCiations
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human Capital
Recognizing the importance of human capital for Racional Engenharia’s busi-
ness has led the Company to include Human Capital as the basis for its four 
strategic dimensions (see page 25). The Company seeks to provide the ade-
quate conditions for its employees’ professional and personal growth and invest 
in creating an environment that is conducive to learning, knowledge sharing and 
continuous improvement. For this, it offers a range of structured employee skill 
building training programs (see page 34).

innovation
Enhancing its client business plan through innovation is a commitment made by 
Racional Engenharia. As a Company focused on serving the private market, it is 
often faced with the demand for highly complex buildings, a feature that re-
quires ongoing search for new technologies and construction solutions. Further-
more, Racional Engenharia works on projects that pose extremely difficult tech-
nical challenges such as the Sirius Project, a groundbreaking particle accelerator 
never before built in Brazil, and buildings designed by international architects.

Given the nature of its activities, Racional Engenharia is not a Company fo-
cused on technology design or development. Therefore, innovation is proposed 
as a means to provide smarter solutions, while adapting the latest technologies 
to the reality and needs of its clients.

In this sense, Racional Engenharia seeks to stay abreast with the latest de-
velopments in other markets and in places where it operates. In doing so, its 
buildings can enjoy state-of-the-art construction technology to ensure quality and 
high performance. 

risk management
With the improvement of its strategic planning in recent years, the Company 
started integrating risk management into its strategy and operation.

The benefit of this change is to identify a risk interface on various business 
fronts in a more consistent manner. Therefore, risk management allows an initiative 
to have a strategic follow-up without losing sight of inherent risks. Through this 
global vision, Racional Engenharia can identify interrelationships between opera-
tion and risk, while prioritizing initiatives and making better grounded decisions. 

To manage risks that may impact on the business environment, i.e., regula-
tory aspects, responsibility for the supply chain, Brand visibility, etc Racional 
Engenharia uses its Corporate Risk Management Matrix. The purpose of this 
tool is to improve the decision-making process, thereby contributing to increas-
ing the Company’s ability to respond effectively to unfavorable events. 

racional EnGEnHaria sEEKs to providE  
tHE adEquatE conditions for its EMployEEs’ 
profEssional and pErsonal GrowtH  
and invEst in crEatinG an EnvironMEnt  
tHat is conducivE to lEarninG, KnowlEdGE 
sHarinG and continuous iMprovEMEnt.
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soCial anD environmental management
In civil construction activities, environmental impacts are inevitable. To minimize 
them, the Company’s social and environmental management follows guidelines 
divided into 11 themed areas, ranging from sustainable building practices to per-
formance indicators to track and measure environmental performance and con-
tract compliance. 

Racional Engenharia conducts an external environmental management audit 
of its construction sites on a regular basis with the purpose of checking whether 
corporate practices and compliance with current laws are being enforced. Held 
on a bimonthly basis on all its sites across Brazil, the audit involves 170 technical 
employees among production engineers, planning engineers, architects, admin-
istrative staff, environmental technicians, and nurses, among other employees.

raCional engenharia’s environmental guiDelines

EnvironMEntal 
ManaGEMEnt

site waste

Demolition

ContaminateD 
soil

vegetation 
suppression

erosion  
anD seDiment

air qualitynoise

water  
anD energy

supply Chain

planning  
anD BuDget

ConstruCtion 
site Design
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projeCt management sustainaBility
Before their construction all Racional Engenharia’s projects are thought out and 
planned from a sustainability standpoint. Therefore, the project design is accompa-
nied by a Social and Environmental Plan, which is developed by a specialist team 
with the aim of mitigating risks, reducing socio-environmental impacts and seeking 
stakeholder engagement and development, besides complying with current laws. 

In parallel to this, an Institutional Roadmap for Social and Environmental 
Actions of the project is drawn up including a set of 36 actions to be implement-
ed during the construction period.

Monitoring and measurement of environmental performance obtained 
through the roadmap are assessed every four months. To promote a sustainabil-
ity agenda, the topic is incorporated into the construction targets and publicized. 
Thus, the adoption of good practices directly impacts the employees’ variable 
compensation. So, the result reached at the end of the year — by means of the 
Institutional Roadmap for Social and Environmental Actions — impacts the per-
sonal targets of both the employees working on site and the officers connected 
to the project. 

environmental management arounD  
raCional ConstruCtion sites 
An initiative provided for in the Corporate Environmental 
Management Program was developed by Racional 
Engenharia during construction of the Itaú Technology 
Center at Mogi Mirim, São Paulo State, between June 
2011 and June 2014. The program involved Erosion 
Control, Sedimentation, Soil Contamination, External  
Air Contamination, Waste Management, and Indoor  
Air Quality. Among the procedures adopted were draining 
gutters, sedimentation basins, culvert protection, regular 
street sweeping with water spray when needed, grass 
planting on slopes, truck wheel and concrete mixer 
washing facilities featuring a closed system for oil and 
water separation. Furthermore, during the construction 
period, an Environment Week was held annually.  
The Company also kept an Environment specialist on-site.
This initiative won the 3rd Seconci-SP Workplace Health 
and Safety Award 2014 in the Gold category.
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CertifieD projeCts
Racional Engenharia was a pioneer in sustainable construction in Brazil. It was 
the country’s first construction company to achieve LEED certification for its 
corporate buildings. The LEED seal underscores the commitment of a building to 
sustainability principles 

Furthermore, Racional Engenharia was the Brazilian Company with the larg-
est number of LEED certified buildings. By year end 2014 seven projects were 
undergoing certification and six had been certified. 

In addition to LEED certification, another Racional Engenharia project — the Hilton 
Barra Hotel — is seeking the Procel Edifica seal, a certification awarded by the 
National Program for Energy Efficiency in Buildings. Developed by the Brazilian 
Ministry of Mining and Energy and the Ministry of Cities, in partnership with uni-
versities and research centers, this certification aims to encourage the construc-
tion of buildings that fully use natural lighting and ventilation. 

leeD CertifieD projeCts
cidadE nova buildinG

pEtrobras corporatE univErsity

Ecopátio bracor iMiGrantEs distribution cEntEr

albErt EinstEin israEli Hospital – pErdizEs unit

albErt EinstEin israEli Hospital – MoruMbi unit

cEntEranEl raposo loGistics parK

tElEfônica / vivo data cEntEr

MoruMbi corporatE

itaú tEcHnoloGy cEntEr

projeCts unDergoing leeD CertifiCation
Hilton barra HotEl

z towEr

oswaldo cruz GErMan Hospital

tiEtê plaza sHoppinG Mall

bM&fbovEspa data cEntEr

GE rEsEarcH and tEcHnoloGy cEntEr

pátio MarítiMa corporatE towEr

jaGuar land rovEr plant

tHE projEct dEsiGn  
is accoMpaniEd by a social  
and EnvironMEntal plan,  
wHicH is dEvElopEd by  
a spEcialist tEaM witH tHE  
aiM of MitiGatinG risKs,  
rEducinG socio-EnvironMEntal 
iMpacts and sEEKinG  
staKEHoldEr EnGaGEMEnt  
and dEvElopMEnt, bEsidEs 
coMplyinG witH currEnt laws.
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Dissemination of sustainaBle praCtiCes
To contribute to the dissemination of sustainable practices for the Brazilian civil 
construction sector with a focus on the environment, Racional Engenharia under-
takes a few initiatives: 

leeD CertifiCation 
Racional Engenharia is part of the GBC Brasil work group, responsible for com-
pliance with the new versions of the LEED certification in the country.

são paulo environment Committee 
A work group led by SINDUSCON-SP (Construction Trade Union). The Committee 
was first set up in January 2003 and its main task is to develop and implement a 
waste management method on construction sites with recycling purposes. As 
well as Racional Engenharia, another ten Brazilian construction companies are 
members of the Committee.

a methoDologiCal guiDe for greenhouse gas emissions inventory  
in Civil ConstruCtion — BuilDings seCtor
Racional Engenharia has helped develop resource materials for the guide, 
whose goal is to provide guidance on GHG inventory to the civil construction 
industry, especially contractors and developers or a combination of both.
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Brazil’s economic cooldown as of 2014 led Racional Engenharia to more clearly 
define the role it wishes to play in the long run within its goal of being the most 
reliable company in the country’s civil construction sector. 

In this context, its business strategy has been better formulated without losing 
sight of the pillars that have sustained the Company throughout its history: valuing 
people and assertiveness in the connection between strategy and operation. 

strategiC Dimensions
Racional Engenharia’s strategic planning is divided into four Dimensions: Value, 
Market, Management and People.  

To Racional Engenharia, these areas cannot be considered in isolation. Each of 
them is mutually dependent upon the others. The Company has defined a state-
ment that sums up this understanding: “People with knowledge and manage-
ment processes that create solutions for the market, generating value for all.”

This model is inspired by the Balanced Scorecard (BSC), a world-renowned 
strategic management methodology. Through it, the Company pursues a policy 
of balancing general performance with results achieved. 

strategiC planning
Racional Engenharia’s current planning vision extends over a four-year period, 
but does not end in 2018. Its approach is long-term in such a way as to ensure 
perpetuation of its business and pursue its goal of being the most reliable Com-
pany in the Brazilian civil construction sector and a benchmark for management, 
talent, relationships and productivity.

racional EnGEnHaria’s currEnt planninG 
vision ExtEnds ovEr a four-yEar pEriod, 
but doEs not End in 2018. its approacH 
is lonG-tErM in sucH a way as to EnsurE 
pErpEtuation of its businEss and pursuE its 
Goal of bEinG tHE Most rEliablE coMpany 
in tHE brazilian civil construction sEctor 
and a bEncHMarK for ManaGEMEnt, talEnt, 
rElationsHips and productivity. 

PeoPLe
with kNowLedge aNd maNagemeNt

ProceSSeS create 
SoLutioNS for the market

geNeratiNg VaLue
for aLL
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sustainaBility strategy
Racional Engenharia’s business strategy is also conceived to be in line with its 
sustainability vision. The Company’s commitment to this is expressed in its Sus-
tainability Statement:

 “sustainability is to bE awarE of our coMMitMEnt to tHE  
futurE and to carry out our businEss today in a rEsponsiblE  
and innovativE MannEr by striKinG a balancE bEtwEEn  
EconoMic, social and EnvironMEntal valuEs”.

Impacts on the environment and neighboring communities around construction 
sites are intrinsic to the Company’s activity. To mitigate such impacts, Racional 
Engenharia, from the economic, social and environmental viewpoint, ensures 
that its sustainability vision permeates the Company’s entire management and 
organizational culture. Parallel to this, it manages sustainability from the view-
point of a building’s life cycle, supply chain and stakeholders. 

This Sustainability Strategy has been operative since 2010. It will undergo re-
view throughout 2015 to make it aligned with the Company’s Strategic Planning 
and ensure its consistency with the new guidelines. 

soCial environmentaleConomiC

management 
proCesses  

(prqd)

people anD 
leaDership 

Development

knowleDge 
management

supply  
Chain stakeholDersBuilDing  

life CyCle

sustainablE  
ManaGEMEnt  
drivErs

ManaGEMEnt  
ElEMEnts

sustainability  
pErspEctivEs
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Reliability is a core Value on which Racional Engenharia’s performance is based. 
Value guides and sustains long-term alliances with customers, employees, sup-
pliers and other stakeholders. 

However, in order to build trusting relationships, some basic premises must 
be respected such as transparency and ethics — the pillars of good corporate 
governance practices. In its efforts to build an increasingly better company, Ra-
cional Engenharia has dedicated itself to improving its governance model year 
after year, while strengthening reliability and recognition for its delivery times 
through its good practices and by consolidating its Brand. 

prinCiples anD poliCies
To disseminate and reinforce its principles of ethics and conduct, in 2014 Racional 
Engenharia developed its Code of Conduct. In it, the Company lays out in a clear 
and transparent manner how it approaches these principles and sets guidelines on 
the behavior expected from its stakeholders in everyday situations. Therefore, the 
document provides the yardstick with which employees can make decisions that 
are consistent with Company guidelines in the workplace and in their relationship 
with other employees, customers, suppliers, competitors, society, the environment 
and within the public sphere. 

The Code sets guidelines on, among other issues, the conduct expected from 
employees in situations ranging from conflicts of interest to participation of each 
person in social media networks. Any behavior in the workplace characterized as 
moral or sexual harassment is prohibited. Discrimination of any kind as well as work 
deemed illegal by Brazilian laws (such as child or forced labor) is also prohibited. The 
Code also emphasizes the need to maintain confidentiality regarding information 
pertaining to Racional Engenharia and its stakeholders and provides guidelines on 
the care to be taken with Company assets — such as equipment, goods and commu-
nications systems, in line with its internal policies over equipment usage. 

Given that Racional Engenharia fosters a healthy and collaborative work envi-
ronment, its Code of Conduct reinforces respect for diversity of opinion and freedom 
of association with any organization, as long as the employee does so in his or her 
own name without interfering in the Company’s daily routine and work environment. 
The document also addresses the performance and development of Company em-
ployees, emphasizing that they should be committed to the improvement of the fol-
lowing organizational competencies: self-growth, interpersonal relationships, focus 
on results, change management, and commitment to Racional Engenharia’s Values. 

In parallel to the Code, Racional Engenharia has set up its own Ethics Com-
mittee, whose main task is to manage stakeholders’ adherence to the document 
as well as disseminate its principles. For clarification of doubts and complaints 
— which can be made anonymously — a specific channel (Canal Livre) has been 
organized by the Company and is managed by PwC independent consultants. 

The Code of Conduct has been approved by the Advisory Board and will be 
adopted as of 2015. It will be available through the Company’s intranet. As well as 
being trained on its principles, every employee is to receive a print copy and will 
electronically sign a statement committing himself or herself to following the 
guidelines set out in the Code. 

in its Efforts to build an incrEasinGly bEttEr 
coMpany, racional EnGEnHaria Has dEdicatEd 
itsElf to iMprovinG its GovErnancE ModEl yEar 
aftEr yEar, wHilE strEnGtHEninG rEliability and 
rEcoGnition for its dElivEry tiMEs tHrouGH its 
Good practicEs and consolidatinG its brand. 
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Corporate struCture
Racional Engenharia is controlled by its holding company Racional Partici-
pações, which, in turn, is also the owner of two other Group companies: Racion-
al Empreendimentos, whose focus is on real estate portfolio investment, and 
Racional Desenvolvimento & Gestão Imobiliária, which operates in the develop-
ment and management of real estate assets. 

raCional empreenDimentos:
A Company dedicated to investments in real estate portfolio originating from the 
following segments: Logistics Parks, Corporate Buildings and Events. 

raCional Desenvolvimento & gestão imoBiliária:
Operating in synergy with the other two companies owned by Racional Partici-
pações, the activities undertaken by Racional Desenvolvimento comprise search 
and purchase of land in strategic locations and the financial structuring needed 
to enable its development, thus completing a cycle of real estate activities and 
offering clients made-to-measure solutions that range from leasing to build-to-
suit contracts. 

Racional Gestão Imobiliária manages assets comprising the property portfo-
lio owned by Racional Empreendimentos. This way of operating enables the cre-
ation of knowledge and value, thus imparting new opportunities in various part-
nership models while adding high profitability, cash generation and long-term 
contracts in the segments of Logistics Parks, Corporate Buildings and Events. 

The following are assets under the management of Racional Desenvolvimento & 
Gestão Imobiliária:
■  Centeranel Raposo and Centeranel Viracopos Logistics Parks located in São 
Paulo State 
■  Torre Sul and Torre Norte Corporate Buildings in Rio de Janeiro
■  SulAmérica Convention Center in Rio de Janeiro
■  CBC (Brazilian Surgeons Congress) in Rio de Janeiro

raCional 
empreenDimentos

raCional engenhariaraCional 
Desenvolvimento & 
gestão imoBiliária

raCional 
partiCipações

assEt-owninG coMpani Es

businEss Mana GEMEnt coMpaniEs
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governanCe struCture
Racional Engenharia’s corporate governance structure rests on two main bod-
ies: The Advisory Board and the Board of Executive Officers. The Advisory 
Board’s main role is to advise the Company’s officers. It brings together profes-
sionals of the highest reputation with extensive business experience who pro-
vide guidance on best management practices and goals relating to economic, 
social and environmental issues. The Board of Executive Officers is responsible 
for management and administration of Racional Engenharia activities. It is in 
charge of running the Company’s business in compliance with the strategic 
guidelines recommended by the Advisory Board.

An External Audit completes this corporate governance structure. Among 
other tasks, its chief duty is to ensure the certification of controls and dissemi-
nate in a clear manner information of internal and external interest.

Through this corporate governance framework, Racional Engenharia seeks 
to create value for its customers, shareholders and other stakeholders so as to 
contribute to the Company’s long-term future and sustainability.

aDvisory BoarD 
While it serves a similar function to that of a Board of Directors in legally estab-
lished joint-stock companies, Racional Engenharia’s Advisory Board aims to en-
sure control over the Company’s management. Therefore, it analyzes, defines, sets 
guidelines and approves operating policies and strategies and Company manage-
ment practices, as well as supports, advises and monitors the Board of Executive 
Officers’ activities and also evaluates the overall performance of the organization. 
In 2014, the Advisory Board held, on average, two ordinary meetings per month. 

The Advisory Board is composed of two independent members and one con-
trolling shareholder, who also serves as the Company’s CEO. In 2014, the role of 
the Advisory Board, which had been established in the previous year, was 
strengthened. On its operating agenda were issues pertaining to good corporate 
governance practices, such as employee compensation, risk management and 
ethics. Specifically as regards the latter topic, the Board was assisted by the 
Ethics Committee on the best way of dealing with the issue. 

EtHics coMMittEE

Created in 2014, this Committee is made up of Racional Engenharia’s Board of 
Executive Officers and has the following duties and responsibilities:
■  Define and disseminate the values and ethical principles guiding the profes-
sional conduct of the Company and its employees. 
■  Assess instances of violations of the Code of Conduct principles and deliber-
ate on the action to be taken.
■  Reduce the subjectivity of personal interpretations of moral and ethical princi-
ples described in the Code.
■  Ensure a response to Code violations and guarantee the confidentiality of in-
formation.
■  Meet regularly to review and update the Code, thereby seeking its continuous 
improvement.

board of ExEcutivE officErs 

The Board of Executive Officers is currently made up of five executives: the CEO 
and executive from the following areas: Organizational Development, Opera-
tions, Business Development and Administration and Finance.
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organizational struCture 

This structure resulted from an adjustment made in 2014. Among the reviews of 
processes and strategies carried out during the year was the need to develop a 
new design for the Board of Executive Officers. The new structure came into 
effect on January 1st, 2015 and its main purpose it to bring more consistency to 
the Company’s macro-strategy aimed at improving segmentation and the evolu-
tion of result targets.

Under the new structure, it is the responsibility of the Board of Executive 
Officers to fulfill Racional Engenharia’s Strategic Planning using a management 
model that combines a set of processes, plans, programs, policies, and systems. 

To assist in the running of business and act as a liaison between strategy 
and operation, the Board of Executive Officers is supported by Management 
Committees and Alignment Forums.

ManaGEMEnt coMMittEEs: 

Composed of Company executives and holding regular meetings, the main pur-
pose of Management Committees is to share information and speed up collec-
tive decision-making, while ensuring interdependence between issues such as 
operations, business development, human resources, sustainability, and TI. 

aliGnMEnt foruMs: 

Spaces created for the discussion and dissemination of strategic content be-
tween leaders and their teams. Held periodically, their purpose is to ensure that 
decisions are taken jointly, taking into consideration different viewpoints. They 
also serve as a communications channel with all employees to disclose the 
strategies used by the Company. 

Gdo – orGanizational dEvElopMEnt arEa  
opErations – opErations arEa  
ddn – businEss dEvElopMEnt arEa 
afi – adMinistration and financE arEa

aDvisory BoarD

Ceo

DDn afigDo operations

racional EnGEnHaria’s corporatE 
GovErnancE structurE rEsts on two 
Main bodiEs: tHE advisory board, wHosE 
Main rolE is to advisE tHE coMpany’s 
officErs, and tHE board of ExEcutivE 
officErs, rEsponsiblE for tHE coMpany's 
ManaGEMEnt and adMinistration.
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employees
The diagram of the four Racional Engenharia Strategic Dimensions (page 25) 
shows that the foundation of the Company’s Strategic Planning is the “People” 
dimension since the employees are the lifeblood of Racional Engenharia’s busi-
ness. Each of them, in their various functions and roles, is fundamental for the 
Company to achieve its goals. 

Given the strategic importance of these stakeholders, Racional Engenharia 
considers the development and retention of these talents as indispensable to 
people management. Proof of this was the challenge faced by the Company 
throughout 2014. The cooldown of Brazil’s economy had an impact on Racional 
Engenharia’s business and this demanded structural adjustments to the new 
market reality. Even so, the Company retained the greatest number of people 
possible and continued its employee development programs with an emphasis 
on leadership training and technical training.

professional Development programs
In 2014, the Company maintained its Trainee Program. Begun in 1987, the pro-
gram is a pioneer in the Brazilian construction industry and lasts for 15 months. 
During this period, participants learn about various industry sectors and projects 
and are given an overview of the entire Company operations, besides learning 
about the complexities and interdependencies involved. In 2014, the Trainee 
Program trained three engineers who joined Racional Engenharia’s workforce. 

evaluation anD meritoCraCy
Employee evaluation is carried out through a performance management program 
combined with individual targets and a behavioral assessment. This evaluation is 
applied with total transparency to employees occupying positions ranging from 
Steering Committee members to coordinators and engineers. Furthermore, the 
program includes a variable compensation model, which was introduced to rec-
ognize employees’ performance and foster a culture of meritocracy. 

Through this program, Racional Engenharia demonstrates respect and rec-
ognition for its human capital. By combining career planning, skills building and 
training, people are able to fulfill their potential and feel challenged to express 
their talents in line with the Company’s strategies. 

Racional Engenharia also has a structured position and compensation pro-
gram in place for employees. Its compensation policy is in line with the best 
market practices and the Company carries out a regular Salaries and Benefits 
Survey conducted by external consultants. 
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employee profile
At the end of 2014, Racional Engenharia had 503 employees. The following 
graphs break down the Company’s employees by gender and age:
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oCCupational health anD safety (sso)
For construction projects commenced in 2014, Racional Engenharia introduced 
a “Food Qualification” program. The initiative consists of food control classifica-
tion undertaken by nutritionists when a new construction site is set up. The goal 
of the program is to ensure that catering suppliers are suitably qualified to pro-
vide meals to Racional Engenharia employees (both its own and contract work-
ers) on site. By means of technical visits to restaurants or industrial kitchens, 
nutritionists ensure that meals are of proven nutritional quality and prepared in 
adequate environments. 

This initiative exemplifies the care taken by Racional Engenharia with its 
employees’ physical health. The Company acts rigorously in issues involving the 
health and safety of its employees, including also contract workers, on its 
worksites. The Company understands that the health, wellbeing and human 
rights of its workers are an essential condition for the practice of any business 
activity. Racional Engenharia is recognized by the market as a benchmark for 
the prevention of work-related accidents and occupational diseases. To manage 
this, the Company uses specific processes, preventative action, audits and oc-
cupational health practices. 

prEvEntativE actions

Through employee training and awareness-raising talks, healthcare campaigns, 
vaccination and dental programs, among other actions, the Company dissemi-
nates information, reduces preconceived ideas, prevents diseases and fosters 
an attitude of change that help employees understand their responsibility in 
making the workplace safe.

intErnal and ExtErnal audits

Audits are undertaken periodically in the form of visits to construction sites and 
worker’s quarters maintained by contractors to ensure that the required documents 
are correct and ideal health and safety conditions are met. If cases of non-compli-
ance are identified, Racional Engenharia immediately takes corrective measures. 

health Control on the worksite   
The construction site for the B32 Commercial Building in São  
Paulo features a first aid station for medical treatment and regular  
blood pressure and blood sugar checks, which are registered in  
the employee’s individual work record. The Weekly Health Dialogue  
is also held on-site and, once a year, Racional Engenharia organizes 
the Health Week campaign comprising vaccinations, talks on male 
health, vital health checks, and a PSA blood test to check for  
signs of prostate cancer. An occupational health audit is also  
carried out on-site, as well as workers’ documentation checks.  
The Company’s health team provides continued education in first  
aid training and pre-hospital care.
This initiative won the 3rd Seconci-SP Workplace Health and  
Safety Award 2014 in the Gold category.
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other employee-relateD initiatives
For decades, Racional Engenharia has undertaken several actions to provide its 
employees with an environment that is healthy, cooperative and suitable for pro-
fessional and personal growth. Some of these actions are listed below: 

worK routinE and conditions

■  At the Company worksites, Racional Engenharia avails employees and service 
providers of options such as a refectory, first aid station, locker rooms and a recre-
ational area so as to avoid overloading the services infrastructure of the surround-
ing area to the worksite. The recreational area is equipped with at minimum four of 
these items: a mini-library, a hammock area, table games, TV, DVD, among others, 
ensuring enough leisure and entertainment for employees in their free time.

■  Partnerships with commercial establishments offering employee discounts such 
as movie theaters, fitness centers, language schools, bookstores, restaurants, etc. 

culturE and lEisurE

■  Tudo em Família (“All in the Family”) Program: an event that enables employees’ 
families to get to know their work environment during a day of recreational activi-
ties. In 2014, five events of this kind were held with 430 visitors.

■  Book Fairs on worksites to encourage reading among workers and Swap Fairs 
(books, DVDS, CDs and LPs) in the Head Office. One Book Fair was held in 2014.

Education and carEEr traininG
■  Educar é Crescer (“Educate to Grow”) Program: 

  Adult Literacy and Computer Courses given at construction sites aimed at 
fostering social and digital inclusion among employees and service providers. 
In 2014, 77 employees joined these initiatives. Racional Engenharia’s onsite 
literacy courses have been running since 1987 and have so far helped around 
4,000 workers to read and write. Computer courses started in 2000 and 
have benefited around 550 workers.

  Career-training courses aimed at improving workers’ technical and profes-
sional skills, such as block laying, ceramic tiling, building painting, drywall in-
stallation, etc have been provided at Racional Engenharia construction sites 
since 2012 in partnership with SENAI — National Service for Industrial Training. 
In 2014, three courses were given training 31 employees.

  Visual arts workshops in partnership with the NGO Mestre de Obras.

  Cultural activities to broaden workers’ cultural awareness and extended to 
their family members, ranging from trips to museums, fairs and movies to tour-
ist points of interest.

■  Tô Sabendo (“I know”) Program: monthly talks held at worksites to inform, ed-
ucate and raise awareness among workers about technical subjects and topics 
of public interest.

■  Futuros Profissionais (“Future Professionals”) Program: technical visits to Ra-
cional Engenharia’s construction sites by Civil Engineering and Architecture stu-
dents. On these occasions, participants learn about the daily routine of the Com-
pany’s employees and details of the construction process and the techniques 
used by Racional Engenharia. This contributes to disseminating knowledge and 
expertise among undergraduate students. In 2014, two visits were scheduled 
totaling 25 students.
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supply Chain
Racional Engenharia operates in various market segments and, in order to guar-
antee efficiency and competitiveness, the Company believes it is critical to es-
tablish a win-win relationship with its suppliers and partners, aimed at ensuring 
its best performance in each project. 

Therefore, since 2013 it has spearheaded a series of actions to strengthen 
and contribute to the development of its suppliers’ business.

basic traininG in businEss ManaGEMEnt 

Racional Engenharia developed a training program focused on micro and small 
suppliers of contract work. With the goal of contributing to the professionalization of 
these entrepreneurs, the program consists of five modules: Administration, Health 
and Safety, Finance, Human Resources and Production and Sustainability, with a 
total of 36 class hours per module. In this initiative, Racional Engenharia is support-
ed by SEBRAE-SP, HM Segurança do Trabalho and SindusCon-SP as its partners.

In 2014, Racional Engenharia registered the trademark for this training pro-
gram — named “Construction Entrepreneurs” — with the Brazilian Institute for In-
dustrial Property (INPI). The Company expects to have another group of partici-
pants in 2015 but with reformulated content. The learning acquired in the first 
group of the program in 2013 — when 39 partner suppliers were involved resulting 
in training of over 100 professionals — will be used to restructure the program so 
that it can continue in 2015. 

supply cHain Evaluation and dEvElopMEnt

Faced with the challenge of aligning the whole supply chain with best market 
practices and with Racional Engenharia’s business operations, the Company 
prepared a Roadmap of Risks and Opportunities, which was drawn up in 2013 
with the support of UniEthos2. This roadmap resulted from a diagnosis reached 
after interviews with internal and external stakeholders. 

From this roadmap, a management strategy was prepared for the supplier 
chain, based on three overall plans: Risk Management, Development and Relation-
ships, whose actions will be implemented by 2016. Management of this project is 
the responsibility of the Supply Chain Committee led by Racional Engenharia’s 
executive vice-president and comprising representatives from the Company’s vari-
ous areas, such as Engineering, Construction, Legal, Finance, and Sustainability, 
among others. 

Clients
Clients are regarded by the Company as the key element on the Market dimen-
sion and this stakeholder group is perceived as the foundation for the whole op-
eration. Racional Engenharia mobilizes its technological and human resources to 
serve clients and seeks to create a bond of trust, respect and loyalty with them. 

Racional Engenharia has increasingly positioned itself as an extension of the 
client’s Engineering department. In this partner relationship, the Company uses 
pre-construction as a competitive edge. When Racional Engenharia is engaged 
from the very start of a project, it can add even more value by contributing its 
knowledge of constructability and timeframe, cost and quality management.

Customer loyalty provides an efficient yardstick to measure the conduct 
followed with this stakeholder group. Currently, most of Racional Engenharia’s 
portfolio is composed of recurrent clients.

2  A Brazilian not-for-profit organization that provides consulting services to companies aimed at 
developing business sustainability with the participation of stakeholders and through partnerships 
that contribute to broadening competitiveness and generating value for society.
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Civil soCiety
Racional Engenharia develops a series of actions for neighboring communities 
living around its construction sites to foster dialogue and local development. 
The Company also sponsors, with its own resources and through tax break in-
centive laws, social projects directed toward art, education, sports and culture. 

In 2014, Racional Engenharia used government tax breaks to support the SP 
Arte/Foto event. This photo exhibition, created in 2005, is currently the most 
important event in the arts market in the Southern Hemisphere bringing together 
art galleries from Brazil and various places around the world. Held over a five-day 
period, the event is a unique opportunity to learn about different artworks, artists, 
curators, etc from Brazil and abroad. The exhibition was held in April.

actions aiMEd at nEiGHborinG coMMunitiEs around racional EnGEnHaria’s 

construction sitEs:

■  Good Neighbor Policy: an event held at the initial phase of construction in the 
form of a breakfast offered to neighbors of Racional Engenharia construction sites 
to encourage dialogue between the Company and local residents. At the breakfast, 
neighbors are briefed on the construction project, introduced to the work team, 
questions are answered and suggestions from the local community are listened to. 

■  Community Development: socio-environmental actions for neighboring communi-
ties aimed at leaving a positive legacy from Racional Engenharia business activities. 

eDuCation anD art for the Community  
To disseminate information about the job market and arts to  
the community living around the Centeranel Viracopos Logistics  
Park at Indaiatuba, São Paulo State, Racional Engenharia,  
in partnership with the São Nicolau de Flüe high school, offered 
local residents two education-related initiatives with Sesi-SP 
throughout 2014: the course “The Professional Role and the 
Meaning of Work” and “Group Painting” workshops.
The course sought to encourage high school students to reflect  
on the concept and meaning of work, recognizing it as a source of 
identity, self-fulfillment and self-esteem. It also sought to contribute 
to enhancing their skills and identifying personal values and life 
projects as a source of motivation and professional engagement. 
The “Group Painting” workshops were aimed at providing  
students with an overview of drawing and painting, their 
interpretation and concept, while bringing out the artistic skills  
in them. As a classroom activity the group developed art works 
using contemporary language.
Around 390 students took part in these initiatives.
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As previously mentioned, Racional Engenharia is an Engineering and Construc-
tion Company serving the Brazilian private sector. Its operation has been re-
stricted to business-to-business (B2B) relations. Given this characteristic, the 
Company’s business depends on a key variable: that investors — Racional En-
genharia’s potential stakeholder group — have long-term plans for Brazil by in-
vesting in the country through business developments. 

As regards the prospects for 2015, particularly for civil construction, the re-
covery of the business environment is not expected in the short term. The growth 
of this sector relies on structural reforms, which apparently are not top of the 
agenda, and on infrastructure and logistics being untangled. However, despite the 
current prospects for the industry, Racional Engenharia takes an optimistic view.

With the tax adjustment measures announced by the Brazilian Government 
early in 2015, the country’s macro-economic scenario has begun to show signs 
of recovery. In this light, investors thinking in the long term may begin to move 
resulting in business opportunities for Racional Engenharia. But, regardless of 
the future scenario, contracts already signed with the Company will ensure a 
reasonable performance in 2015. 

With its 43-year long history, Racional Engenharia has experienced periods 
of market downturn and upturn reflecting all the different economic cycles the 
country has undergone over this period. Through its expertise, Racional Engen-
haria has learned that times of crisis always bring opportunities. For this reason, 
we continue to believe in Brazil’s potential for a significant economic recovery. 
Therefore, we will continue to anticipate the future demands of a new growth 
cycle for the county. 

witH tHE tax adjustMEnt 
MEasurEs announcEd by tHE 
brazilian GovErnMEnt Early 
in 2015, tHE country's Macro-
EconoMic scEnario Has bEGun 
to sHow siGns of rEcovEry.  
in tHis liGHt, invEstors  
tHinKinG in tHE lonG tErM May 
bEGin to MovE rEsultinG in  
Good businEss opportunitiEs.
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indEpEndEnt auditors’  
rEport on tHE  
financial statEMEnts
to tHE ManaGEMEnt and quotaHoldErs of 

racional EnGEnHaria ltda.

são paulo — sp

We have examined the financial statements of Racional Engenharia Ltda. (“Compa-
ny”), comprising the balance sheet as of December 31, 2014 and the related state-
ments of operations, comprehensive income, changes in quotaholders’ equity and 
cash flows for the year then ended, as well as the summary of the significant ac-
counting practices and other explanatory notes.

management’s responsiBility for the finanCial statements
The Company’s management is responsible for the preparation and adequate 
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the accounting prac-
tices adopted in Brazil and the internal controls it deemed necessary to enable 
the preparation of these financial statements free of significant distortions, re-
gardless of whether the latter were caused by fraud or error.

responsiBility of the inDepenDent auDitors
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based 
on our audit, undertaken in accordance with Brazilian and international auditing 
standards. These standards require compliance with ethical requirements by the 
auditors and that the audit be planned and executed with the objective of ob-
taining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from signif-
icant distortions.

An audit involves the carrying out of procedures selected to obtain evidence 
related to the amounts and disclosures presented in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including an evalu-
ation of the risk of significant distortions in the financial statements, irrespective 
of whether these are caused by fraud or errors. In this assessment of risks, ac-
cording to auditing standards, the auditor considers relevant internal controls for 
the preparation and adequate presentation of the financial statements of the 
Company, to plan the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstanc-
es, but not for purposes of expressing an opinion on the efficacy of these inter-
nal controls of the Company. An audit also includes the evaluation of the ade-
quacy of adopted accounting practices and reasonability of accounting 
estimates made by Management, as well as an assessment of the presentation 
of financial statements taken as a whole.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion.

opinion
In our opinion, the individual aforementioned financial statements present fairly, 
in all material respects, the financial position of Racional Engenharia Ltda. as of 
December 31, 2014, the performance of its operations and its cash flows for the 
year then ended, in conformity with accounting practices adopted in Brazil.
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other issues  
audit of tHE corrEspondinG aMounts

The financial statements of Racional Engenharia Ltda. for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2013 were examined by other independent auditors who issued a report 
on May 16, 2014 with an unmodified opinion on these financial statements. 

As part of our examination of the financial statements of 2014, we also ex-
amined the reclassifications described in note 2e, which were made to correct 
the financial statements of 2013. In our opinion, such reclassifications are ap-
propriate and correctly made. We have not been engaged to audit, review or 
apply any other procedures on the Company’s financial statements for the year 
2013 and, therefore, did not express an opinion or any other form of assurance 
on the financial statements of 2013, taken as a whole.

supplEMEntary inforMation

We have also examined the information contained in the attached Supplemen-
tary Chart for the year ended December 31, 2014, prepared under Manage-
ment’s responsibility, the purpose of which is to present the total amount of 
services performed under the Company’s responsibility in the year and allow 
additional analyses, which are not required as part of the basic financial state-
ments. Such information was submitted to the same audit procedures previous-
ly described and, in our opinion, these supplementary statements are adequate-
ly presented, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

são paulo, MarcH 23, 2015

KpMG auditorEs indEpEndEntEs

crc 2sp014428/o -6

(oriGinal rEport in portuGuEsE siGnEd by)

waGnEr pEtElin

contador crc 1sp142133/o -7
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assets   note  2014 2013

casH and casH EquivalEnts  4  537 3,999

intErEst EarninGs banK dEposits  5  30,215 69,267

tradE accounts rEcEivablE  6  46,100 59,666

advancEs to suppliErs    938 2,326

currEnt tax assEts  7  9,940 5,869

otHEr crEdits rEcEivablE    2,870 4,923

total Current assets    90,600 146,050

radE accounts rEcEivablE  6  9,477 –

judicial dEposits  17  1,863 2,305

dEfErrEd tax assEts  8  5,956 11,244

total non-Current assets    17,296 13,549

invEstMEnts    85 85

propErty, plant and EquipMEnt  9  1,947 2,797

intanGiblE assEts  10  11,185 12,209

total non-Current assets    30,513 28,640

total assets    121,113 174,690

liaBilities   nota  2014 2013

financinGs   11  2,039 2,000

suppliErs     4,413 9,308

labor and social sEcurity obliGations  12  15,803 36,719

tax liabilitiEs  13  2,513 3,509

incoME tax and social contribution payablE    – 346

plEdGEs and rEtEntions  14  198 11,274

advancEs froM cliEnts  15  33,785 29,449

provision for GuarantEE of construction worKs 16  2,740 2,000

otHEr accounts payablE    293 396

total Current liaBilities    61,784 95,001

financinGs   11  676 2,645

plEdGEs and rEtEntions  14  6,744 –

provision for continGEnciEs  17  8,606 7,370

EMployEE bEnEfits  19  1,622 –

total non-Current liaBilities    17,648 10,015

quotaholDer’ equity  18

capital     21,615 21,615

Equity Evaluation adjustMEnt    (2) –

rEtainEd EarninGs    20,068 48,059

total quotaholDers’ equity    41,681 69,674

total liaBilities    79,432 105,016

total liaBilities anD quotaholDers’ equity    121,113 174,690

balancE sHEEts
at DeCemBer 31, 2014 anD 2013
(in tHousands of rEais)

sEE tHE accoMpanyinG notEs to tHE financial statEMEnts
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   note  2014 2013

nEt incoME froM construction contracts  20  262,379 556,266

cost of sErvicEs rEndErEd  21  (228,623) (399,861)

gross inCome    33,756 156,405

adMinistrativE and coMMErcial ExpEnsEs  21  (33,721) (54,769)

dEprEciation and aMortization    (3,026) (2,504)

otHEr incoME    35 54

inCome Before net finanCial inCome anD taxes    (2,956) 99,186

financial incoME  23  3,800 9,397

financial ExpEnsEs  23  (1,671) (3,174)

net finanCial inCome    2,129 6,223

inCome (loss) Before taxes    (826) 105,409

currEnt incoME and social contribution taxEs 22  – (40,942)

dEfErrEd incoME and social contribution taxEs 22  (5,288) 6,884

net inCome (loss) for the year    (6,114) 71,351

statEMEnts of  
opErations
years enDeD DeCemBer 31, 2014 anD 2013
(in tHousands of rEais)

sEE tHE accoMpanyinG notEs to tHE financial statEMEnts

     2014 2013

net inCome (loss) for the year    (6,114) 71,351

full rEcoGnition of actuarial lossEs    (2) –

Comprehensive inCome for the year    (6,116) 71,351

statEMEnts of  
coMprEHEnsivE incoME
years enDeD DeCemBer 31, 2014 anD 2013
(in tHousands of rEais)
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statEMEnts of cHanGEs  
in quotaHoldErs’ Equity
years enDeD DeCemBer 31, 2014 anD 2013
(in tHousands of rEais)

BalanCes at january 1, 2013  21,615 – 33,997 55,612

payMEnt of dividEnds in fEbruary 2012  – – (33.997) (33,997)

nEt incoME for tHE yEar  – – 71,351 71,351

allocation of nEt incoME for tHE yEar:

 advancE of dividEnds  – – (22,211) (22,211)

 intErEst on own capital  – – (1,081) (1,081)

BalanCes at DeCemBer 31, 2013  21,615 – 48,059 69,674

allocation of rEtainEd EarninGs

 payMEnt of dividEnds as MinutEs 2014 –  

 (notE 17 b.)  – – (21,877) (21,877)

forMation of coMprEHEnsivE incoME:

 (–) sEs on actuarial obliGations  – (2) – (2)

nEt loss for tHE yEar  – – (6,114) (6,114)

BalanCes at DeCemBer 31, 2014  21,615 (2) 20,068 41,681

equity evaluation 
aDjustmentCapital

retaineD  
earnings total
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     2014 2013

Cash flow from operating aCtivities

incoME (loss) bEforE taxEs    (826) 105,409

adjustMEnts for:

 dEprEciation and aMortization    3,026 2,502

 (rEvErsal) allowancE for doubtful accounts   (48) 48

 financial ExpEnsEs on loans, financinG and installMEnt plans  602 931

 intErEst on intErEst EarninG banK dEposits   (3,201) -

 forMation of provision for GuarantEE of construction worKs  740 120

 provision for EMployEE bEnEfits    1,620 -

 provision for continGEnciEs    1,236 34

     3,149 109,044

Changes in assets anD liaBilities 

(inCrease) / DeCrease in assets

 tradE accounts rEcEivablE    4,137 (6,826)

 rEcovErablE taxEs    (4,071) (3,530)

 advancEs to suppliErs    1,388 9,476

 otHEr crEdits rEcEivablE    2,053 (1,260)

 judicial dEposits    442 (2)

inCrease / (DeCrease) in liaBilities

 suppliErs    (4,895) 3,518

 plEdGEs and rEtEntions    (4,332) 5,808

 advancEs froM cliEnts    4,336 (57,230)

 salariEs and social sEcurity cHarGEs   (20,916) 20,572

 taxEs payablE    (926) 750

 otHEr accounts payablE    (103) (316)

incoME and social contribution taxEs paid    (346) (44,219)

intErEst paid    (330) (450)

net Cash generateD By (useD in) DeriveD from operating aCtivities   (20,414) 35,335

Cash flow from investment aCtivities

intErEst EarninGs banK dEposits    42,253 (69,267)

acquisition of fixEd assEts and intanGiblE assEts   (1,151) (2,101)

Cash flow from (useD in) investing aCtivities   41,102 (71,368)

Cash flow from finanCing aCtivities

payMEnts of taxEs in installMEnts    (70) (188)

payMEnt of loans and financinG    (2,203) (2,327)

payMEnt of dividEnds    (21,877) (56,208)

payMEnt of intErEst on own capital    – (1,081)

Cash flow useD in finanCing aCtivities    (24,150) (59,804)

net DeCrease in Cash anD Cash equivalents    (3,462) (95,837)

casH and casH EquivalEnts at january 1    3,999 99,836

casH and casH EquivalEnts at dEcEMbEr 31    537 3,999

net DeCrease in Cash anD Cash equivalents    (3,462) (95,837)

statEMEnts of  
casH flows
years enDeD DeCemBer 31, 2014 anD 2013
(in tHousands of rEais)

sEE tHE accoMpanyinG notEs to tHE financial statEMEnts
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Racional Engenharia Ltda. (“Company”) is engaged in the management and exe-
cution of construction works, and operates chiefly as a construction company.

The Company belongs to the Racional Group, and is a subsidiary of Racional 
Participações Ltda.

(a) statement of Conformity
The financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting practices 
adopted in Brazil.

The issue of financial statements was authorized by the Executive Board of 
the Company on March 23, 2015.

(B) measuring Basis
The financial statements were prepared based on the historical cost, except for 
those items measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(C) funCtional CurrenCy anD presentation CurrenCy
These financial statements are being presented in Brazilian Real, functional cur-
rency of the Company. All financial information presented in BRL has been rounded 
to the nearest value, except otherwise indicated.

(D) use of estimates anD juDgments
The preparation of financial statements, Management used judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting principles and the re-
ported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

Estimates and assumptions are reviewed in a continuous manner. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the year in which the estimates are re-
vised and in any future periods affected.

Information on critical judgment and estimates referring to the accounting poli-
cies adopted which impact the amounts recognized in the financial statements and 
uncertainties on the assumptions and estimates that pose a high risk of resulting in a 
material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the following notes:

■  Note 6 — recognition and measurement of allowances for doubtful accounts;
■  Note 8 — recognition of deferred tax assets, availability of future taxable income 
against which tax losses may be used;
■  Note 9 — definition of useful life of property, plant and equipment;
■  Note 10 — definition of intangible assets’ useful lives and goodwill recoverability; 
■  Note 17 — recognition and measurement of reserves for contingencies: main 
assumptions on fund disbursement likelihood and amounts.

notEs to tHE 
financial 
statEMEnts
(in tHousands of rEais)

1. opErations

2. prEparation  
basis
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(e) reClassifiCations
The Company, in order to improve the presentation of cash flow statements for 
the year ended December 31, 2013, reclassified the variation in financial invest-
ments, in the amount of R$ 69,267, which had not been reported by any of the 
activities, to the investment activities group. The balance sheets and the state-
ment of operations, comprehensive income and changes in quotaholders’ equity 
were not changed.

The accounting policies described below have been consistently applied to all 
the years presented in these financial statements.

(a) operating inCome
Income is measured for the fair value of the payment received or receivable less 
estimated commercial discounts granted.

ConstruCtion
When results from a construction agreement cannot be reliably estimated, the 
corresponding revenue is recognized for the amount of incurred costs whose 
recovery is considered likely. The costs of each agreement are recognized as 
expenses for the year when incurred.

Changes in labor costs, claims and incentive payments are included insofar 
as such costs can be reliably measured and the receiving is likely.

When total costs are likely to exceed an agreement’s total revenues, the 
estimated loss is immediately recorded as expense.  

The amounts of appropriated income, less installments received, are recorded 
as trade receivables or advances from clients, when applicable. In addition, amounts 
received before construction start-up are recorded as advances from clients.

(i) fixEd-pricE construction aGrEEMEnts

For fixed-price construction agreements, revenues are recognized for the cost 
percentage incurred in the work, in relation the total budgeted cost, and that 
percentage is applied to the recognized revenue, adjusted according to condi-
tions of the construction agreement (percentage of work completed).

(ii) construction ManaGEMEnt aGrEEMEnt

For agreements where the Company is reimbursed for costs estimated and ap-
proved by the parties, or otherwise defined costs, plus a percentage thereof as 
management fee, or is paid by means of an agreed-upon fixed compensation, the 
revenue is recognized with basis on costs incurred through the balance sheet date.

(iii) MixEd aGrEEMEnts 

Some agreements establish that the client will provide certain materials to be 
used in the works, and will directly contract with suppliers. In those cases, to 
calculate the percentage of the cost incurred in the works in relation to the total 
estimated cost, the cost of the materials directly acquired by the client is not 
considered as incurred cost and thus is not included in the total estimated cost, 
for purposes of determining the percentage of work completed which is used for 
purposes of calculating the revenue to be actually recorded and earned by the 
Company. Likewise, that cost portion also does not include the basis for deter-
mining the recognized revenue.

3. siGnificant 
accountinG policiEs
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finanCial inCome anD expenses
The financial income comprises, basically, asset and liability interest from finan-
cial investments and loans. Such interest rates are recognized in the result for 
the year using the effective interest rate methodology.

(B) finanCial instruments

non-Derivative finanCial assets — reCognition anD DereCognition
The Company recognizes loans and receivables initially at the date of the trans-
action that originated them. All other financial assets (including assets designat-
ed at fair value through profit or loss) are initially recognized on the date of the 
negotiation under which the Company becomes a party to the contractual pro-
visions of the instrument.

The Company fails to recognize a financial asset when the contractual rights 
to the cash flow of the asset expire, or when the Company transfers the rights 
to the reception of contractual cash flows over a financial asset in a transaction 
in which essentially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the financial asset 
are transferred. Any interest created or retained by the Company in such trans-
ferred financial assets are recognized as an asset or liability separately.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the 
balance sheet only when the Company has legally enforceable right to set off 
and there is intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously.

non-Derivative finanCial assets — measurement
financial assEts MEasurEd at fair valuE tHrouGH profit or loss

A financial asset is classified as measured at fair value through profit or loss if it 
is held for trading or when is designated as such upon initial recognition. Finan-
cial assets are stated at fair value through profit or loss if the Company manag-
es these investments and makes decisions on investment and redemption 
based on fair value according to the risk management and strategy of invest-
ment documented by the Company. The transaction costs are recognized in in-
come (loss) when incurred.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss comprise 
equity instruments that would otherwise be classified as available for sale.

loans and rEcEivablEs

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments, 
but not quoted on any active market. Such assets are initially recognized at fair 
value plus any transaction costs directly assignable. After their initial recogni-
tion, loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest rate method, reduced by any impairment losses.

Loans and receivables include trade accounts receivable and other receivables.

casH and casH EquivalEnts

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances of cash and cash equivalents, 
banks checking account and interest earning bank deposits with original matur-
ities of three months or less as of the contracting date, which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of change in fair value and are used by the Company to man-
age short-term obligations.
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non-Derivative finanCial liaBilities — reCognition, write-off anD measuring
The Company recognizes debt securities issued on the date that they are origi-
nated. All other financial liabilities (including those liabilities designated at fair 
value through profit or loss) are recognized initially on the negotiation date on 
which the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instru-
ment. The Company fails to recognize a financial liability when its contractual 
obligations are discharged or canceled or expired.

The non-derivative financial liabilities of the Company are: financings, sup-
pliers and other accounts payable.

Such financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value plus any transac-
tion costs directly assignable. After their initial recognition, these financial liabil-
ities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

(C) aCCounts reCeivaBle
Trade accounts receivable comprise amounts receivable in virtue of construction 
contracts in the normal course of the Company’s activities. If the payment term is 
equivalent to one year or less, accounts receivable are classified as current assets. 
Otherwise, they are presented in non-current assets. Accounts receivable are rep-
resented by billed and unbilled services related to construction agreements in an 
advanced stage of construction. 

Trade accounts receivable are recognized at fair value, according to the in-
come recognition and, subsequently, measured at amortized cost using the ef-
fective interest rate method less allowance for doubtful accounts (“PCLD” or 
impairment).

(D) property, plant anD equipment

reCognition anD measurement
Property, plant and equipment items are stated at historical acquisition or con-
struction cost, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, when 
required.

Fixed-asset costs comprise expenditures directly attributable to the asset 
acquisition/construction, including material costs, direct labor costs and any 
other costs for installing the asset in place, and creating conditions for their 
operationability. 

When parts of a property, plant and equipment item have different useful 
lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of PP&E.

Gains and losses on disposal of a property, plant and equipment item are 
determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount 
of Property, plant and equipment and are recognized net within “Other income” 
in the income (loss).

Other expenses are recorded as capital expenditures only if there is an in-
crease in the economic benefits of the related item; otherwise the items are 
charged to income as expense. 

DepreCiation
Fixed assets items are depreciated using the straight-line method in the income 
for the year based on the estimated economic useful life of each component. 
Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or the estimat-
ed useful life of the asset, unless it is reasonably certain that the Company will 
obtain ownership at the end of the lease term. Land is not depreciated.



53  ■  financial statEMEnts

The useful lives estimated for the current and comparative year are as 
follows:

The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are revised at the 
reporting date of the financial statements and any adjustments are recognized 
as changes to accounting estimates.

(e) intangiBle assets

gooDwill
Goodwill has as its the economic fundamental the expectation of future profitabil-
ity and arises from a transaction conducted in a period prior to the adoption of 
CPC accounting pronouncements for the preparation of financial statements, un-
der an accounting policy of using the same criteria used for the preparation of 
prior financial statements, and then discontinuing the amortization.

Consequently, goodwill started being tested for impairment on an annual 
basis. Any identified impairment losses are recognized against goodwill and are 
not reversed. Goodwill is stated at cost less amortization through December 31, 
2008, the date of transition into CPC accounting pronouncements. 

software
Acquired software licenses are capitalized based at the costs incurred to ac-
quire the software and prepare them for use. These costs are amortized over 
their estimated useful life of software (three to five years).

(f) impairment

finanCial assets (inCluDing reCeivaBles)
Financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or loss are assessed 
at each reporting date for objective evidence of impairment loss.
An objective evidence that financial assets have lost value includes:

■  Debtor’s default or delays;
■  Restructuring of an amount owed to the Company at conditions that the Com-
pany would not consider as normal conditions;
■  Indications that the debtor or issuer will face bankruptcy;
■  Negative changes in payment situation of debtors or issuers;
■  The disappearance of an active market for an instrument; and
■  Observable data indicating that expected cash flow measurement of a group 
of financial assets decreased.

finanCial assets measureD at amortizeD Cost
The Company considers as evidence of impairment of assets measured by 
amortized cost both individually and on an aggregate basis. All individually sig-

MacHinEry and EquipMEnt 10 yEars

furniturE and fixturEs 10 yEars

it EquipMEnt 5 yEars

vEHiclEs 5 yEars

lEasEHold iMprovEMEnts 10 yEars
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nificant receivables are assessed for impairment. Those identified as non-im-
paired on an individual basis are collectively assessed for any impairment loss 
not yet identified. Assets that are not individually significant are assessed on an 
aggregate basis in relation to impairment by grouping the assets with similar risk 
characteristics.

When assessing impairment on an aggregate basis the Company makes use 
of historical trends of the recovery term and the amounts of losses incurred, ad-
justed to reflect the Management’s judgment if the current economic and credit 
conditions are such that the actual losses will probably be higher or lower than 
those suggested by historical trends.

An impairment is calculated as the difference between the asset's book value 
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial 
asset's original effective interest rate. The losses are recognized in income and 
reflected in an account for allowance for losses. When the Company considers 
that it is not possible to reasonably expect recovery, amounts are written-off. When 
a subsequent event causes the amount of the impairment loss to decrease, the 
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

non-finanCial assets
The book values of the Company’s non-financial assets, except for inventories 
and deferred income and social contribution tax assets, are reviewed at each 
balance sheet date for indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the 
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. In case of goodwill, recoverable value 
is tested on an annual basis.

For tests of reduction in recoverable value, assets are grouped into the 
smallest identifiable group of assets that can generate cash inflows by continu-
ous use that are largely independent of cash flows from other assets, or Cash 
Generating Units (CGU). Goodwill in a business combination is allocated to cash 
generating units or groups of cash generating units that are expected to benefit 
combination synergy.

Recoverable value or CGU of an asset is the higher of value in use and fair 
value less selling costs. Value in use is based on estimated future cash flows 
discounted to present value using a discount rate before taxes that reflects cur-
rent market evaluations of times value of money and the specific risks of the 
assets or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset or 
its CGU exceeds its recoverable value.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Recognized losses refer-
ring to CGUs are initially allocated to reduce any goodwill allocated to that CGU 
(or CGU group) and then to reduce the book value of other assets of that CGU (or 
CGU group) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss related to goodwill is not reversed. Regarding other 
assets, impairment losses are reversed only with the condition that the book 
value of the asset does not exceed the book value that would have been cal-
culated, net of depreciation or amortization, if the value loss had not been 
recognized.

(g) other Current assets
Stated at their cost or realization value, including, when applicable, income 
earned up to the balance sheet date.
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(h) provisions
A provision is set up when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a 
result of a past event, which can be reliably estimated, and it is probable that an 
outflow of funds will be required to settle the obligation.

(i) other Current liaBilities
Stated at the known amounts or estimated, plus, when applicable, the corre-
sponding charges and monetary and exchange variations incurred up to the 
balance sheet date.

(j) employee Benefits

short-term Benefits
Obligations for short-term employee benefits are measured on a non-discounted 
basis and incurred as expenses as the related service is rendered.

The liability is recognized at the amount expected to be paid under the cash 
bonus plans or short-term profit sharing if the Company has a legal or construc-
tive obligation to pay this amount as a result of service rendered by the employ-
ee, and the obligation can be reliably estimated. 

post-employment Benefit — health Care plans
The Company provides certain post-employment healthcare benefits to its em-
ployees. Those benefits are funded on a cash basis. Benefits granted through 
defined-benefit plans are funded separately for each plan, under the projected 
unit credit method.

Measurements, including actuarial gains and losses, are immediately recog-
nized in the balance sheet and the corresponding debits and credits are charged 
to retained earnings, under comprehensive income, in the same period they oc-
cur. Measurements are not reclassified to income in subsequent periods. 

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the asset or lia-
bility of the net defined benefit. The Company recognizes the following varia-
tions in the liability for the defined benefit in the statement of operations (by 
function):

■  Service costs, comprising current service costs, past service costs, gains and 
losses from significant reductions in work time estimates and unusual settlements;
■  Net interest expense or income,

Post-employment healthcare benefit plan costs are determined by means of 
actuarial evaluation methods. The actuarial evaluation requires the use of as-
sumptions of discount rates, expected asset return rates, future salary increases 
and mortality rates. Defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in 
those assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed on the base dates.

To determine adequate discount rates, Management takes into account the 
interest rates of debentures issued by highly solvent corporations and National 
Treasury Bills for periods corresponding to defined benefit plan obligation peri-
ods. The quality of securities is reviewed and those having an excessive credit 
spread are excluded from those to be used in identifying the interest rate. 

The mortality rate is based on mortality tables available in Brazil.
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(k) DistriBution of DiviDenDs
Payment of dividends and interest on capital to partners is recognized as a lia-
bility in the Company’s financial statements when established in shareholders’ 
meetings, since no payments of mandatory minimum dividends are foreseen.

The value of interest on capital for tax purposes is recorded as a financial 
expense, and for purposes of presentation in the financial statements it is treat-
ed as profit distribution, charged against retained earnings, in quotaholders’ 
equity. The tax benefit of interest on own capital is recognized in the statement 
of operations.

(l) inCome anD soCial ContriBution taxes
The income and social contribution taxes, both current and deferred, are calculated 
based on the rates of 15% plus a surcharge of 10% on taxable income in excess of 
R$ 240 (annual base for the year) for income tax and 9% on taxable income for 
social contribution on net income, and consider the offsetting of tax loss carryfor-
ward and negative basis of social contribution limited to 30% of the taxable.

Income tax and social contribution expense comprises both current and de-
ferred taxes. Current taxes and deferred taxes are recognized in income (loss) 
unless they are related to items directly recognized in quotaholders’ equity.

currEnt tax

Current taxes are the expected taxes payable on the taxable income for the 
year, at tax rates enacted or substantively enacted on the date of presentation 
of the financial statements, and any adjustments to taxes payable in relation to 
prior years.

dEfErrEd tax

Deferred taxes are recognized in relation to the temporary differences be-
tween the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for accounting purposes 
and the related amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred taxes are mea-
sured at tax rates expected to be applied to temporary differences when they 
are reversed, based on laws enacted or substantively decreed up to the re-
porting date of the financial statements.

tax ExposurEs

To determine current income tax, the Company takes into consideration the impact 
of uncertainties on positions taken on taxes and if the additional income tax and 
interest payment has to be made. The Company believes that the provision for in-
come tax recorded in liabilities is adequate for all outstanding tax periods, based 
on its evaluation of several factors, including interpretations of tax laws and past 
experience. This evaluation is based on estimates and assumptions that may in-
volve several judgments on future events. New information may be provided, mak-
ing the Company change its judgment on the existing provision adequacy; such 
changes will impact income tax expenses for the year in which they are made.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legal enforce-
able right to set off current tax assets and liabilities, and the latter relate to in-
come taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity.

A deferred income tax and social contribution asset is recognized for un-
used tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to the extent 
that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the 
unused tax losses and credits can be utilized.

Deferred income and social contribution tax assets are reviewed at each 
reporting date and reduced when their realization is no longer probable.
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(m) new stanDarDs anD interpretations not yet aDopteD
Several news Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are ef-
fective for the years started after January 1, 2014, and have not been adopted 
to the preparation of these financial statements. Those that may be relevant to 
the Company are listed below. The Management does not plan to adopt this 
standard in advance.

ifrs 9 financial instruMEnts 

IFRS 9, published in July 2014, replaced guidelines of IAS 39 Financial Instru-
ments: Recognition and Measurement (Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
measurement). IFRS 9 presents reviewed guidelines on classification and mea-
surement of financial instruments, including a new model for expected credit 
loss to calculate impairment of financial assets, and new requirements on hedge 
accounting. This rule maintains IAS 39 guidelines on financial instruments’ rec-
ognition and de-recognition.

IFRS 9 is effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early 
adoption allowed.

ifrs 15 incoME froM contracts witH cliEnts 

The IFRS 15 requires an entity to recognize the amount of income reflecting the 
consideration that it expects to receive in exchange for control of these goods 
or services. The new standard will replace most of the detailed guidance on in-
come recognition that currently exists in IFRS when the new standard is adopted. 
The new standard is applicable beginning on or after January 1, 2017, with ear-
ly adoption permitted by the IFRS. The standard may be adopted retrospectively, 
adopting a cumulative effects approach. The Company is evaluating the effects 
IFRS 15 will have on its financial statements and disclosures. 

The Company has not yet chosen the transition method to the new standard 
or determined the effects of the new standard in today's financial reports. 

The Accounting Pronouncements Committee has not yet issued any ac-
counting pronouncement or amendments in current pronouncements corre-
sponding to these standards.

(n) Determination of the fair value
A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the de-
termination of fair value, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. 
Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes. 
When applicable, additional information about the assumptions made in deter-
mining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

Cash and bank deposit balances include basically cash available and bank de-
posits available, respectively.

4. casH and casH EquivalEnts

     2014 2013

casH     78 77

banKs cHEcKinG account    118 261

banco itaú s.a. — “autMais”    341 3,661

     537 3,999



58  ■  financial statEMEnts

5. intErEst EarninGs banK dEposits

6. tradE accounts rEcEivablE 

Financial investments refer mostly to Bank Deposit Certificates and fixed-rate 
funds earning 100% to 102.8% of the interbank deposit rate.

The Group's exposure to interest rate risks and a sensitivity analysis of fi-
nancial items are disclosed in Note 25.

The balances of accounts receivable for performed and billed services, as of 
December 31, 2014 and 2013, by maturity periods, are as follows:

     2014 2013

banco santandEr s.a. — (banK dEposit cErtificatEs) cdb   14,036 12,251

banco votorantiM s.a. — cdb    7,075 5,827

banco safra    1,284 –

banco bradEsco s.a. — rEpurcHasE and rEsalE aGrEEMEnt — cdb   2,807 22,767

banco itaú s.a. — (banK dEposit cErtificatEs) cdb   5,013 28,422

     30,215 69,267

     2014 2013

construction ManaGEMEnt aGrEEMEnts    38,686 32,981

fixEd-pricE construction aGrEEMEnts    16,891 27,002

     55,577 59,714

( –) allowancE for doubtful accounts    – (48)

     55,577 59,666

currEnt     46,100 –

non-currEnt     9,477 –

     2014 2013

fallinG duE    44,721 45,654

ovErduE up to 30 days    – 597

 31 – 60 days    147 15

 61–  90 days    – 763

billEd sErvicEs    44,868 47,029

sErvicEs to bE billEd (fallinG duE)    10,709 12,637

     55,577 59,666
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7. currEnt tax assEts

8. dEfErrEd tax assEts

In 2014, the Company recorded no reserves for loan losses. The balance of ac-
counts receivable is composed as follows, by clients:

Management understands that the Company has a dispersed client base and 
that the concentration of receivables is due to the works in progress at year end.

Client     2014 2013

GE — cEntro brasilEiro dE pEsquisas ltda    9,414 6,985

Multiplan EMprEEndiMEntos iMobiliários s.a.   6,330 9,540

jaGuar E land rovEr brasil iMport. coM. ltda   12,270 –

itaú unibanco s.a.    9,413 6,611

carvalHo HosKEn HotElaria ltda    4,203 –

ts -19 participaçõEs ltda    4,095 –

otHEr     9,852 36,530

     55,577 59,666

     2014 2013

csll rEcovErablE    7 –

irpj rEcovErablE    662 463

witHHoldinG of rEcovErablE social sEcurity cHarGEs on billinGs   9,271 5,426

     9,940 5,869

     2014 2013 

tEMporary additions in taxablE incoME coMputation

 allowancE for tax, civil, labor and otHEr risKs   8,606 7,370

 provision for GuarantEE    2,740 2,000

 profit sHarinG    8,553 22,927

 provision for inss – prEvEntion of accidEnts factor (“fap”)  – 126

 rEsErvE for payroll social sEcurity cHarGEs   – 3,301

 allowancE for doubtful accounts   – 47

 EMployEE bEnEfits    1,623 –

 otHEr accounts payablE    99 71

tEMporary Exclusion in taxablE incoME coMputation

 tax aMortization of Goodwill    (4,104) (2,773)

total tEMporary additions, nEt    17,517 33,069

noMinal ratE – %    34 34

DeferreD inCome anD soCial ContriBution taxes   5,956 11,244

in inCome for the year (note 22)    (5,288) 6,884
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9. propErty, plant and EquipMEnt

10. intanGiblE assEts

Changes in property, plant and equipment for the years ended December 31, 
2014 and 2013:

(*) on sEptEMbEr 9, 2007, forMEr parEnt coMpany racicorp acquirEd 10% of tHE coMpany’s sHarE 
quotas, wHicH wErE prEviously HEld by individual partnErs. tHat transaction GEnEratEd Good-
will of r$ 8,873, and its EconoMic fundaMEntal is tHE ExpEctation of futurE profitability. in tHE 
yEar bEGinninG january 1, 2009, tHE systEMatic Goodwill aMortization basEd on ExpEctEd futurE 
profitability was discontinuEd. froM tHEn on, only annual rEcovErability tEsts HavE bEEn pEr-
forMEd. on novEMbEr 30, 2011, racicorp split off tHE EntirE Goodwill it Had rEcordEd and MErGEd 
it into tHE coMpany, basEd on tHE appraisal rEport issuEd by indEpEndEnt ExpErts, at booK valuE.

january 1, 2013   6,682 (3,465)  3,217

 additions     462  – 462

 dEprEciation   – (882) (882)

dEcEMbEr 31, 2013   7,144 (4,347)  2,797

 additions   660  –  660

 dEprEciation   – (1.510)   (1,510)

dEcEMbEr 31, 2014   7,804  (5,857)  1,947

Cost
DepreCiation anD 

amortization net

     2014 2013

 

MacHinEry and EquipMEnt 10 102 (66) 36 66

furniturE and fixturEs 10 2,534 (1,900) 635 710

it EquipMEnt 20 3,862 (3,033) 829 1,588

vEHiclEs  20 66 (30) 35 –

lEasEHold  iMprovEMEnts 10 1,240 (828) 412 433

   7,804 (5,857) 1,947 2,797

Cost

aCCumulateD 
DepreCiation/
amortization net net

annual  
DepreCiation/
amortization  

rate – %

     2014 2013

 

Goodwill in sHarEs acquisitions (*)    8,873   (2,218)  6,655 6,655

softwarE  20  9,995   (5,466)   4,529  5,554

     18,868   (7,684)  11,184  12,209

Cost

aCCumulateD 
DepreCiation/
amortization net net

annual  
DepreCiation/
amortization  

rate – %
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11. financinGs

For the appraisals and the impairment test, cash flows were estimated for the 
period from 2015 to 2019, disregarding any inflation that may occur in the period. 
The average discount rate applied to the cash flow was 12%. 

The changes in intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2014 
and 2013 are as follow:

Outstanding balances, by maturity year, are as follows:

(a) On March 24, 2011, the Company entered into a loan agreement with the Bra-
zilian Development Bank (BNDES) through financial agent Banco Itaú BBA S.A., to 
allow software development and customization and an office expansion. 

That debt is subject to average interest rate of 4.45% per year plus the long-term 
interest rate. The payment schedule establishes the repayment of the principal 
plus monetary restatement in 42 monthly installments after an 18-month grace 
period. On December 31, 2014, 26 installments had already been settled, and 16 
installments to be settled. The agreement has clauses on compliance with certain 
financial and non-financial covenants, among which we point out:

■  Invest funds received solely in the project execution.
■  Informing the creditor of any event likely to change the project, describing the 
measures adopted.
■  Absence of mergers, takeover, spin-offs and other corporate reorganization 
procedures without the creditor’s prior consent.

     2014 2013 

subcrEdit a    1,336 2,337

subcrEdit b    509 786

subcrEdit c    557 974

subcrEdit f    313 548

national banK for  social and EconoMic dEvElopMEnt – bndEs   2,715 4,645

currEnt     2,039 2,000

non-currEnt    676 2,645

     2014 2013 

2014     –   2,000

2015     2,039   1,984

2016     676   661

      2,715   4,645

january 1, 2013   16,738  (4,548)  12,190

 additions   1,639 – 1,639

 aMortization   – (1,620)  (1,620)

dEcEMbEr 31, 2013   18,377 (6,168)  12,209

 additions for tHE yEar   491 – 491 

 aMortization   –  (1,516)   (1,516) 

dEcEMbEr 31, 2014   18,868  (7,684) 11,184

Custo amortização líquiDo
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12. labor and social sEcurity obliGations

13. tax liabilitiEs

14. plEdGEs  
and rEtEntions

■  Forwarding to the creditor any changes in by-laws, and minutes of the Annual 
General Meetings as well as those of the Board of Directors’ meetings.
■  Maintenance of insurance of goods pledged as surety.
■  No assignment or transfer of contractual rights or obligations, or sale or dis-
posal of the financed asset without the creditor’s approval.
■  Keeping up with any payments regarding liabilities of tax or labor nature. 
■  No rentals, leasing or transfers of the asset acquired under the project funded.

In 2014, the profit sharing totaled R$ 8,553 (R$ 22,927 in 2013) calculated based 
on the Company’s Profit Sharing Policy including all Company’s employees, and 
accounted for as “Administrative and commercial expenses.”

In supply contracts, the Company provides the retention of values to be released 
after the conclusion of the respective construction works as a guarantee that 
suppliers will comply with the after construction work commitments in relation to 
the Company and the Company in relation to the clients. Such pledge is formed 
by means of the adoption of a percentage on the value of labor described in the 
contract with the supplier.

     2014 2013 

profit sHarinG    8,553 22,927

social sEcurity contributions    186 913

contribution to tHE sEvErancE indEMnity fund   449 608

vacations and corrEspondinG cHarGEs    6,558 10,677

otHEr payroll cHarGEs payablE    57 1,594

     15,803 36,719

     2014 2013 

contribution for social sEcurity fundinG – cofins payablE   887 970

social intEGration proGraM (pis) payablE    192 210

sErvicE tax (iss) payablE    93 735

witHHoldinG incoME tax (irrf) payablE    401 570

cofins payablE – spEcial installMEnt payMEnt proGraM (paEs)   – –

otHEr taxEs payablE    940 1,046

     2,513 3,531
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15. advancEs froM cliEnts

16. provisions for GuarantEEs  
of construction worKs

17. provisions for continGEnciEs

Changes in the provision bay be shown as follow:

Expenses incurred during the year are directly recorded under “income (loss) for 
the year”, and the provision is adjusted at the end of each year in order to reflect 
the estimated expenditures with repairs during the remaining guarantee period.

For all issues that are being questioned, a provision is formed in an amount con-
sidered sufficient to cover probable losses, based on the evaluation of external 
legal advisors.

The provision is formed for proceedings in which the risk assessment, as 
confirmed by the Company’s legal advisors, suggests a probable loss. Changes 
in provision for labor, civil and tax risks and other are as follow:

     2014 2013 

at tHE bEGinninG of tHE yEar    2,000 1,880

 provision supplEMEnt    740 120

at tHE End of tHE yEar    2,740 2,000

     2014 2013 

at tHE bEGinninG of tHE yEar    7,370 7,336

 supplEMEnt of provisions    1,236 34

at tHE End of tHE yEar    8,606 7,370

     2014 2013 

labor continGEnciEs    1,512 1,230

civil liability continGEnciEs    395 653

sundry continGEnciEs    6,699 5,487

     8,606 7,370

     2014 2013 

tHE valuE of tHE installMEnt rEcEivEd is GrEatEr tHan tHE rEcoGnizEd incoME froM tHE proGrEss of worK 13,040 21,754

installMEnt rEcEivEd at tHE bEGinninG of contractual EffEctivEnEss  19,505 1,792

advancEs rEcEivEd for costs to bE incurrEd    1,240 5,903

     33,785 29,449
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18. quotaHoldErs’ Equity

Contingent liaBilities for whiCh a provision  
has not Been reCorDeD anD evaluateD as possiBle loss.
The Company is party to labor, civil tax lawsuits, involving loss risks classified as 
possible by Management, based on the evaluation of its legal advisors. No pro-
vision was recorded as formation and estimate below:

The company made a judicial deposit in an amount of R$ 1,827 as of June 23, 
2008, which suspended the enforceability of tax credit related to an administra-
tive procedure charging an alleged PIS credit regarding triggering events occurred 
between January 1997 and September 1998. 

(a) Capital
The capital is divided into 21,615,393 quotas at R$ 1.00 each. The breakdown of 
capital can be shown as follows:

(B) DiviDenDs anD interest on own Capital

The distribution of dividends was made for the following partners:

For purposes of disclosing and adequacy to accounting practices, the financial 
expenses of interest on own capital in 2013, calculated using the TJLP (Long-
term interest rate) as a basis (Law 9,249/95), in the amount of R$ 1,081 was 
reversed in the statement of operations under “Financial expenses” to “Retained 
earnings” in the statement of changes in quotaholders’ equity.

partner     quotas reais 

racional participaçõEs ltda.    21,615,390 21,615,390

individuals – ManaGinG partnErs    3 3

     21,615,393 21,615,393

partner      2014 

racional participaçõEs ltda.     20,000

individuals – ManaGinG partnErs     1,877

payment of DiviDenDs     21,877

      2013 

payMEnt of dividEnds     56,208

intErEst on own capital     1,081

         57,289

      2014 

partnErs’ MEEtinG as of fEbruary 24, 2014     21,851

partnErs’ MEEtinG as of MarcH 26, 2014     26

DiviDenDs from retaineD earnings     21,877

     2014 2013 

labor     6,572 5,497

civil     3,998 6,013

tax     1,000 17,795

     11,570 29,305
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19. bEnEfits GrantEd  
to EMployEEs

(C) retaineD earnings (loss)
The allocation of the net income for the year and accumulated balance was 
authorized in a Quotaholders’ Meeting.

(a) post-employment Benefit plan
The Company records a provision for post-employment benefits related to a 
healthcare plan. The net liabilities recorded on December 31, 2014 is of R$ 1,622, 
recorded in non-current liabilities.

Amounts related to such benefits were determined in an evaluation con-
ducted by an independent actuary and are recognized in financial statements in 
accordance with CPC 33.

(B) BalanCe of post-employment Benefit oBligations  
CalCulateD By inDepenDent aCtuaries ChangeD as follows
The updating of liabilities was recorded in the income (loss) for the year. The net 
expense incurred with the healthcare plan granted to employees for 2014, in 
accordance with actuarial calculations performed by independent actuaries, in-
cludes the following components:

(C) aCtuarial assumptions
The main assumptions adopted in the calculation were as follows:

nota 1 — tHE turnovEr tablE adoptEd rEflEcts ratE of: 30% (lEnGtH of sErvicE + 1) appliEd to tHE 
coMpany’s dEMoGrapHic profilE.
nota 2 — tHE Entry into rEtirEMEnt is 55 yEars for botH GEndErs plus 10 yEars in tHE coMpany.

provision restatements 

 dirEctly in tHE incoME     224

 cost in tHE pEriod rEGardinG tHE rEstatEMEnt of  provisions   224

cost of tHE dEfinEd bEnEfit 

 cost of currEnt sErvicE     51

 cost of intErEst     172

 actuarial lossEs     1,399

net Cost in the perioD regarDing the net expenses with plan    1,622

DesCription     Current assumption 

finanCial 

 capacity factor of bEnEfits     100 %

 ExpEctEd inflation ratE – lonG-tErM     5.50 %

 actuarial discount noMinal ratE     12.06%

 MEdical costs GrowtH noMinal ratE – MEdical inflation     8.66%

 MEdical costs actual GrowtH ratE pEr aGE – aGinG factor    3.00%

 liKEliHood of post-rEtirEMEnt inclusion in MEdical plan    30.00%

BiometriC 

 GEnEral Mortality tablE     at–2000 M/f

 Mortality tablE of individuals witH pErManEnt disability    n/a

 tablE of nEw disability bEnEfit vEstEd    n/a

 turnovEr tablE - (End of EMployMEnt rElationsHip)    notE 1

 Entry into rEtirEMEnt     notE 2

healthCare plan – 
granteD in 2014
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20. incoME

21. costs and ExpEnsEs 
by typE

(a) Cost of serviCes renDereD

(B) aDministrative anD CommerCial expenses

(C) personnel expenses

     2014 2013 

MatErials and sErvicEs    (90,101)   (182,411)

pErsonnEl (notE 21 c.)    (73,874)   (139,357)

utilitiEs and sErvicEs    (47,154)   (49,185)

occupation     (17,494)   (28,908)

     (228,623)   (399,861)

     2014 2013 

pErsonnEl (notE 21 c.)    (18,393)   (39,308)

GEnEral ExpEnsEs    (7,411)  (9,189)

occupation     (2,599)  (2,898)

provision of rEvErsal for risKs    (3,809)   52

utilitiEs and sErvicEs    (1,303)  (1,512)

tax ExpEnsEs    (206)  (1,914)

     (33,721)  (54,769)

     2014 2013 

salariEs     (51,592)  (67,241)

vacation     (4,131)   (9,433)

13tH salary    (4,177)  (6,103)

inss     (3,599)  (20,982)

fGts     (6,738)  (7,351)

profit sHarinG      (2,237)  (34,268)

food – pat     (4,906)  (7.,204)

otHEr pErsonnEl ExpEnsEs    (14,887)  (26,083)

     (92,267)  (178,665)

     2014 2013 

construction worK and MixEd-purposE contracts   53,978 312,380

construction ManaGEMEnt aGrEEMEnts    231,042 284,076

gross inCome    285,020  596,456

(–) sErvicE tax    (22,641) (40,190)

net inCome (loss) from ConstruCtion ContraCts   262,379  556,266
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22. incoME and social contribution taxEs

On May 14, 2014, Law 12,973/2014 was published and its is a result of the con-
version of Provisional Measure (MP) No. 627 revoking the Transitional Tax Regime 
(RTT) and providing for other measures, among them: 

(i) Amendments in Decree-Law No. 1598/77 related to the corporate income tax, 
and amending the relevant legislation regarding social contribution on net income; 
(ii) Provides that the amendment or adoption of accounting methods and criteria 
through administrative acts issued on the basis of jurisdiction conferred on com-
mercial law, after the publication of this Provisional Measure, will have no impli-
cations in the calculation of federal taxes until the tax law starts governing this 
matter; (iii) includes specific treatment on potential taxation of profits or divi-
dends; (iv) includes provisions on calculation of interest on own capital; and (v) 
considerations on investments assessed under the equity method. 

The provisions included in the mentioned Law will become effective as of 2015. 
The early adoption in 2014 may eliminate potential tax effects, especially those 
related to the payment of dividends and interest on own capital in 2014. Based 
on analyses performed, the Company’s management concluded that there are 
no relevant impacts from possible effects arising from the early adoption of this 
new standard. Thus, the Parent Company’s Management has opted to not early 
adopt the Law 12.973/2014 for 2014. Furthermore, it monitors the publication 
of standards and changes in this new Law, which may give rise to changes and 
cause impacts to the Company.

     2014 2013 

currEnt     – (40,942)

dEfErrEd assEts    (5,288)  6,884

     (5,288)  (34,058)

     2014 2013 

rEconciliation of incoME tax and social contribution ExpEnsEs calculatEd at EffEctivE ratE

 incoME (loss) bEforE incoME and social contribution taxEs  (826)  105,409

 noMinal ratE – %    34  34

incoME and social contribution taxEs at tHE noMinal ratE   281 (35,839)

adjustMEnts

 dEcrEasE for tHE payMEnt of intErEst on own capital   – 367

 otHEr    (5,569)  1,414

       

inCome tax anD soCial ContriBution DeBiteD in inCome for the year   (5,288)  (34,058)
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23. nEt financial incoME

24. rElatEd partiEs BalanCes

operations
The Company leases the building where its headquarters operate, owned by the 
company Racicorp Comércio e Participações Ltda., incurred as lease expenses 
amounting to R$ 1,665 (R$ ,563 in 2013), recorded as “Administrative and com-
mercial expenses”.

management remuneration
In the year ended December 31, 2014, an amount of R$ 2,817 (R$ 3,376 in 2013) 
was paid to the Company’s Managers as compensation presented as “Personnel 
expenses” (Note 21 b.). Moreover, the managers are also the company’s quotahol-
ders, and the payment of dividends are described in Note 18 b.

No sums were paid as: (a) post-employment benefits (pensions, other re-
tirement benefits, post-employment life insurance and medical care); (b) long-
term benefits (long service leave or other leaves, jubilee or other benefits per 
years of service, long-term disability benefits); (c) benefits on termination of 
employment contract; (d) share-based compensation.

     2014 2013 

cEntEranEl 1 participaçõEs ltda.    – 1,028

BalanCes inCluDeD in the item “other CreDits reCeivaBle”   – 1,028

     2014 2013 

incoME froM intErEst EarninG banK dEposits   3,201 5,917

assEt intErEst    599 2,065

otHEr financial incoME    – 1,415

finanCial inCome    3,800 9,397

discounts GrantEd    (976) (1,965)

liability intErEst    (602) (1,002)

banK ExpEnsEs    (93) (207) 

finanCial expenses      (1,671) (3,174)

net finanCial inCome      2,129  6,223
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25. financial 
instruMEnts

overview
The Company is exposed to the following risks:

■  Credit risk;
■  Liquidity risk, and
■  Operational risk.

This note presents information on the Company’s exposure to each of the risks 
above, the Company’s objectives, measurement policies, and the Company’s risk 
and capital management proceedings.

risk management struCture
The Company’s Management is responsible for the definition and follow-up of the 
Company’s risk management policies and managers of each area regularly report to 
the Company on their activities.

The Company’s risk management policies were established to identify and 
analyze the risks that the Company is exposed, to define appropriate limits and 
controls of risks, and to monitor risks and adherence to the limits. Risk policies 
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in the market conditions 
and in the activities of the Company. The Company seeks to develop, upon its 
training and management standards and procedures, a discipline and control en-
vironment in which all employees are aware of their assignments and obligations.

CreDit risk
Credit risk is the risk of the Company incurring losses due to a client or financial 
instrument counterparty, resulting from failure in complying with contract obliga-
tions. Risk is mainly due to trade accounts receivable, and of interest earning 
bank deposits.

Management also seeks to minimize the credit risks tied to financial institu-
tions, by diversifying its operations with top line institutions.

Financial assets’ book values represent maximum exposure to credit risk, as 
follows:

liquiDity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk of the Company encountering difficulties in performing the 
obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled with cash pay-
ments or with another financial asset. The Company’s approach in liquidity manage-
ment is to guarantee, as much as possible, that it always has sufficient liquidity to 
perform its obligations upon maturity, under normal and stress conditions, without 
causing unacceptable losses or with a risk of sullying the Company’s reputation.

Management believes that the Company does not have high liquidity risk, 
considering its capital structure with low participation of debt maintained with 
third parties.

    note 2014 2013 

casH and casH EquivalEnts     4 537 3,999

intErEst EarninGs banK dEposits   5 30,215 69,267

tradE accounts rEcEivablE   6 55,577 59,666

otHEr crEdits rEcEivablE    2,870 4,923

     89,199 137,855



70  ■  financial statEMEnts

Additionally, they mechanisms are periodically analyzed aiming to raise 
funds to reverse positions that could affect the liquidity of the Company.

The table below shows the risks of liquidity by maturity and reflects the fi-
nancial flow of the Company on December 31, 2014:

We do not expect that cash flows, including in the Company’s maturity analysis, 
may occur significantly earlier or in significantly different amounts.

interest rate risk
The Company is exposed to the risks and fluctuations of interest rates in its in-
vestments. 

On the date of the Company’s interim financial statements, the profile of fi-
nancial instruments remunerated by Company’s interest was:

      Book value 

     2014 2013 

variaBle rate instruments 

financial assEts    

 intErEst EarninGs banK dEposits   30,215 69,267

financial liabilitiEs 

 loans and financinG    2,715 4,645

      32,930 73,912

    total up to 1 year > 1 year 

assets 

casH and casH EquivalEnts   537 537 –

intErEst EarninGs banK dEposits   30,215 30,215  

tradE accounts rEcEivablE   55,577 46,100 9,477

otHEr crEdits rEcEivablE   2,870 2,870 –

    89,199 79,722 9,477

liaBilities

financinGs    2,715 2,039 676

suppliErs    4,413 4,413 –

plEdGEs and rEtEntions   6,942 198 6,744

otHEr accounts payablE   306 306 –

    14,376 6,956 7,420
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The Company performed sensitivity analysis of main risks to which its financial 
instruments are exposed. For the sensitivity analysis of interest rate variations, 
Management adopted, for the probable scenario, the same rates used on bal-
ance sheet date. Scenarios II and III were estimated with additional valuation of 
rates of 25% and 50% respectively, while scenarios IV and V have estimated 
additional devaluation of 25% and 50%, respectively, for the probable scenario.

The table below shows possible impacts on results for each of the scenarios:

operational risk
Operating risk is the risk of direct or indirect losses arising from different causes 
related to the Company’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure and 
external factors, except credit and liquidity risks, as those arising from legal and 
regulatory requirements and from generally accepted corporate behavior standards.

The Company’s goal is to manage the operational risk to avoid the occur-
rence of financial losses and damage to its reputation, and to pursue cost effec-
tiveness and avoid control procedures that restrict initiative and creativeness.

Top management of each business unit is responsible for developing and 
implementing controls to address operating risks. 

Existence of integrated and accurate information systems support Manage-
ment on mitigation of operating risks with the implementation of standardized 
and automated processes.

Capital management
The Company’s capital management is conducted so as to balance own and 
third parties’ fund sources, balancing the return to quotaholders and the risk to 
quotaholders and creditors.

asset exposure

finanCial assets

i
proBaBlerisk

effeCt

cHanGEs   
in cdi

intErEst EarninGs  
banK dEposits

exposure

30,215 3,266

3,266

4,083

4,083

4,899

4,899

2,450

2,450

1,633

1,633

ii 
25%

iii
50%

iv
–25%

v 
–50%

Cenários
effeCtive 

interest rate  
at 12/31/14

10,81%



72  ■  financial statEMEnts

ClassifiCation of finanCial instruments
The classification of financial instruments is presented in the table below, and 
there are no financial instruments classified in other categories besides those 
informed:

(a) fair value

(a.1) dErivativE financial instruMEnts

The Company does not perform operations with derivative financial instruments 
in order to mitigate or eliminate risks to its operation. 

(a.2) “non-dErivativE” financial instruMEnts

Management considers that fair value equals book value for all operations, as for 
this operations the book value reflects the settlement value on that date, since 
these transactions mature in the short term. Thus, the carrying amounts recorded 
in the balance sheet relating to the balances of interest earning bank deposits, 
accounts receivable, other receivables, such as accounts payable and other debts 
do not differ from their fair values at December 31, 2014. 

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had no kinds of loans and/or fi-
nancing.

assets

casH and casH EquivalEnts 4 – 3,999 – 3,999

intErEst EarninGs banK dEposits 5 69,267 – – 69,267

tradE accounts rEcEivablE 6 – 59,666 – 59,666

otHEr crEdits rEcEivablE  – 4,923 – 4,923

   69,267 68,588 – 137,855

liaBilities 

financinGs  11 – – 4,645 4,645

suppliErs  – – 9,308 9,308

plEdGEs and rEtEntions 14 – – 11,274 11,274

otHEr accounts payablE  – – 396 396

     25,623 25,623

total at  
DeCemBer 31, 2013

liaBilities at 
amortizeD Cost

loans anD 
reCeivaBles

fair value through 
profit or loss

assets

casH and casH EquivalEnts 4 – 537 – 537

intErEst EarninGs banK dEposits 5 30,215 – – 30,215

tradE accounts rEcEivablE 6 – 55,577 – 55,577

otHEr crEdits rEcEivablE  – 2,870 – 2,870

   30,215 58,984 – 89,199

liaBilities 

financinGs  11 – – 2,715 2,715

suppliErs   – – 4,413 4,413

plEdGEs and rEtEntions 14 – – 6,942 6,942

otHEr accounts payablE  – – 306 306

     14,376 14,376

total at  
DeCemBer 31, 2014

liaBilities at 
amortizeD Cost

loans anD 
reCeivaBles

fair value through 
profit or loss
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fair value hierarChy
The different levels were defined as follows:

■  Level 1 — Prices quoted (not adjusted) in active markets for identical assets 
and liabilities;
■  Level 2 — Inputs, except for quoted prices, included in Level 1 which are observ-
able for assets or liabilities, directly (prices) or indirectly (derived from prices), and
■  Level 3 — Assumptions, for assets or liabilities, which are not based on ob-
servable market data (non-observable inputs);

Determination of fair value
■  Level 2 — Interest earning bank deposits were recorded on a basis of the re-
demption value on that date, representing the best fair value.

In levels 1 and 3, the company had no qualifying transactions.

francisco aurélio Martins 

accountinG ManaGEr

crc 1 sp 165357/o -0
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statement of the total sum of ConstruCtion ContraCts  
in effeCt unDer the Company’s responsiBility

The presentation of the data is considered relevant by the Company, since most of 
the values for material and services has been hired directly by the owners of the 
works/clients and does not represent an income recognized by the Company arou-
nd the level of operation performed. Therefore, the Company submits a statement 
of value of services provided as an indicator of the total volume of construction 
works undertaken under its financial, technical and administration responsibility.

francisco aurélio Martins 

accountinG ManaGEr

crc 1 sp 165357/o -0

attacHMEnt
supplementary information for the finanCial 
statements as of DeCemBer 31, 2014
(in tHousands of rEais)

     2014 2013 

ConstruCtion work anD mixeD-purpose ContraCts 

 rEcoGnizEd rEvEnuEs    53,978  312,380

 MatErial and sErvicEs providEd by cliEnts   18,594 183,684

total of Civil works unDer speCial-orDer anD mixeD ContraCts   72,572 496,064

ConstruCtion management agreements 

 rEcoGnizEd rEvEnuEs    231,042 284,076

 construction costs paid dirEctly by cliEnts   546,225 1,238,289

total ConstruCtion works unDer management ContraCts   777,267 1,522,365

total ContraCtual sum of reCognizeD revenues   849,839 2,018,429
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